REVISED
AGENDA
MEETING VENUE:
This meeting will be held in line
with the Local Authorities & Police
& Crime Panels (Coronavirus)
(Flexibility of Local Authority &
Police & Crime Panel Meetings)
(England & Wales) Regulations
2020.
The meeting will be held virtually
via Zoom and streamed live, via
the following link:

Contact:
Direct Dial:
e-mail:

Democratic Services
01775 764626
demservices@sholland.gov.uk

Date:

15 January 2021

www.facebook.com/SouthHollandDCofficial
/

Dear Councillor,
A meeting of the DISTRICT COUNCIL will be held virtually, as detailed above, on
Wednesday, 20 January 2021, commencing at 6.30 pm at which your attendance is
requested.
Yours faithfully,

Christine Marshall
Executive Director for Commercialisation
(Quorum:13)
AGENDA
1.

Apologies for absence.

2.

Minutes
To sign as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 25
November 2020 (copy enclosed)

3.

Declaration of Interests.
(Where a Councillor has a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest the Councillor

(Pages
5 - 20)

must declare the interest to the meeting and leave the meeting without
participating in any discussion or making a statement on the item,
except where a Councillor is permitted to remain as a result of a grant of
dispensation.)
4.

Chairman's Announcements.

5.

Announcements by Leader and Members of the Cabinet.

6.

Questions asked on notice under Standing Order 6

7.

Questions asked without notice under Standing Order 7

8.

Committee Minutes
To note the minutes of the following Committees and Panels:a) Governance and Audit Committee - 26 November 2020
b) Licensing Committee - 10 December 2020
c) Planning Committee - 16 December 2020

9.

Key Decision Plan
To receive the current Key Decision Plan (copy enclosed).

(Pages
21 - 28)

10.

Report from Cabinet meeting held on 15 December 2020
To consider recommendations of the Cabinet in respect of:

(Pages
29 - 46)

a) Local Council Tax Support Scheme 2021/22 – To seek Council
approval of the final proposals for the Local Council Tax Support
Scheme 2021/22 (Cabinet minute 50)(Cabinet agenda item 8)
11.

Housing Benefit Subsidy Claim - 2019/20
To report the outcome of the 2019/20 Housing Benefit Subsidy claim
audit (report of the Portfolio Holder for Finance, Strategies and
Partnership and the Executive Director – Commercialisation (S151)
enclosed)

(Pages
47 - 52)

12.

Mid Term Treasury Report 2020/21
To provide an update of the treasury management position of the
Council as at 30th September 2020 (report of the Executive Director
Commercialisation (S151) enclosed)

(Pages
53 - 70)

13.

Polling Place Review
To agree the changes to the polling places for the Polling Districts CRD2
and SMK2 (report of the Acting Returning Officer enclosed).

(Pages
71 - 74)

14.

Nominations for Committees and other Seats and Proposed Changes to
the Constitution.

To receive, from political groups, nominations for any changes to
Committees and other seats and to consider any proposed changes to
the Constitution.
The following nominations/changes have been submitted:
Governance and Audit Committee
Councillor Hasan to replace Councillor Newton
15.

Public Sector Partnership Services Limited
To consider a proposal to admit a third shareholder and to agree
associated changes to the Joint Venture Shareholder Agreement
(“JVSA”) (Report of Deputy Leader of the Cabinet and/or Executive
Director - Commercialisation (S151 Officer) enclosed).

(Pages
75 - 80)

(Please note that the appendix to this report is not for publication by
virtue of Paragraph 3 (Information relating to the financial or business
affairs of any particular person (including the authority holding that
information)) in Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act
1972, and is therefore attached to this agenda as item 18).
16.

Any other items which the Chairman decides are urgent

NOTE:

No other business is permitted unless by reason of special
circumstances, which shall be specified in the minutes, the
Chairman is of the opinion that the items(s) should be
considered as a matter of urgency.

17.

Exclusion of the Press and Public
To consider that, under section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act
1972, the press and public be excluded from the meeting for the
following items of business of the grounds that they involve the likely
disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraphs 3 and 5 of
Schedule 12 (A) of the Act.

18.

Public Sector Partnership Services Limited
Appendix to the report at agenda item 15 is enclosed.

(Pages
81 - 94)

19.

Covid implications for the leisure operating contract
To consider Covid implications for the leisure operating contract (report
of the Executive Director – Commercialisation (S151 Officer) enclosed).

(Pages
95 102)

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 2.
-1-

Minutes of a meeting of the SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL held in line
with the Local Authorities & Police & Crime Panels (Coronavirus) (Flexibility of Local
Authority & Police & Crime Panel Meetings) (England & Wales) Regulations 2020.,
on Wednesday, 25 November 2020 at 6.30 pm.
PRESENT

P A Redgate (Vice-Chairman)
B Alcock
J R Astill
J Avery
A C Beal
M D Booth
C J T H Brewis
P E Coupland
A C Cronin
T A Carter
A Casson
H Drury
R Gambba-Jones

R A Gibson
R Grocock
M Hasan
J L King
C J Lawton
J D McLean
A M Newton
N H Pepper
G A Porter
J L Reynolds
G T D Rudkin
G P Scalese

M D Seymour
S-A Slade
E J Sneath
G J Taylor
A C Tennant
J Tyrrell
S C Walsh
D J Wilkinson
A R Woolf
C N Worth

In Attendance: Strategic Advisor/Head of Paid Service, Shared Executive Director
Commercialisation (S151), Executive Manager Governance (Deputy Monitoring
Officer), Place Manager, Executive Manager Delivery, Executive Manager Growth,
Strategic Housing Manager, Communities Manager, Democratic Services Manager
Action By

43.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE.
Apologies were received from or on behalf of F Biggadike and H
Bingham.

44.

MINUTES

MINUTES OF ANNUAL COUNCIL MEETING HELD ON 23
SEPTEMBER 2020
45.

That the minutes of the meeting held on 23 September 2020 be
signed as a correct record as soon as reasonably practicable after
the meeting.
MINUTES OF SPECIAL COUNCIL MEETING HELD ON 8
OCTOBER 2020
46.

That the minutes of the meeting held on October 2020 be signed

Page 5

-2SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 25 November 2020

as a correct record as soon as reasonably practicable after the
meeting.
47.

DECLARATION OF INTERESTS.
There were none.

48.

CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS.
There were none.

ANNOUNCEMENTS BY LEADER AND MEMBERS OF THE
CABINET.
49.

There were no announcements by the Leader.
There was an announcement by a Member of the Cabinet:
Councillor Coupland commented on the difficult task ahead for the
Council in relation to the report that day by the Chancellor of the
Exchequer. Councillor Coupland commented that there will be
service reviews and opportunities for efficiency in order to provide
the best value for money for residents and was optimistic for the
continuation of Government grants.
50.

QUESTIONS ASKED ON NOTICE UNDER STANDING ORDER

6
There were none.
QUESTIONS ASKED WITHOUT NOTICE UNDER STANDING
ORDER 7
51.

Question to: Leader of the Council
Question from: Councillor Newton
Subject: Announcement by the Chancellor of the Exchequer
Referring to Councillor Coupland’s comments at agenda item 5
(minute 47above), Councillor Newton agreed that all Members
should pull together and support all efforts to ensure value for
money but asked that all Members be consulted on any
proposals. The Leader reassured Councillor Newton that all
Members would be consulted.

Question to: Leader of the Council
Question from: Councillor Brewis
Subject: Fly Tipping

Page 6

-3SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 25 November 2020

Due to the cost to the authority of clearing fly tipping from remote
areas and dealing with backlogs in collection areas, Councillor
Brewis asked whether it be a sensible compromise to restore
arrangements with other districts like the West Norfolk collections
service.
The Leader agreed that reciprocal arrangements across borders
could be useful for areas close to those borders and that
conversations should happen in suitable areas such as those
closest to Peterborough and West Norfolk.
The Leader also suggested that the Communications team could
provide support regarding engaging with the public to report
incidents and that although recent fines to individuals should be
applauded, increased fines would be a better deterrent.
Councillor Booth also commented that fining of individuals should
be applauded.

Question to: Leader of the Council
Question from: Councillor Newton
Subject: Minor injuries unit at Johnson Hospital
Councillor Newton commented on the Johnson Hospital being
closed and staff redeployed during the COVID crisis. Residents
in the district were clearly minimising visits to the hospital in order
to reduce strain on the NHS. This was useful at the time but the
situation now needed to be reviewed and the hospital reopened
as residents are now travelling to Boston, Peterborough and
Kings Lynn for treatment. Funding spent in those areas means
money leaving the district.
Councillor Brewis also commented that the residents in the district
are still unable to access a local minor injuries unit.
The Leader agreed that letters should be written to the health
authority with a request to reopen the hospital. The Leader
agreed to raise the matter at the next Leaders meeting in
Lincolnshire and to gain support from the MP.
Question to: Portfolio Holder Environmental Services
Question from: Councillor Gibson
Subject: Fly tipping – tracking of vehicles
Councillor Gibson commented that he had supported ward
members during the process for registering a complaint for fly
tipping and asked whether there were facilities to track

Page 7

-4SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 25 November 2020

registration numbers – such as a laptop with software to track
vehicle registrations.
Councillor Gambba-Jones advised that the enforcement side sits
with Councillor Taylor in Communities and Facilities.
Councillor Taylor thanked Councillor Gibson for assisting with
reporting the incident and agreed that if officers need more
support this can be provided in order to encourage more people
to report fly tipping.
52.

REPORT FROM CABINET MEETING HELD ON 27 OCTOBER

2020
Consideration was given to the recommendation of the Cabinet in
respect of the Quarter 2 (to 30 September 2020) financial position
of the Council.
DECISION:
That the General Fund Capital programme be approved as set
out in table 5 and 6 of Appendix A to the report.

53.

KEY DECISION PLAN
The current Key Decision Plan was received.
Councillor Newton had submitted a question to the Environmental
Services Manager regarding the County Council improvement
plans to work along the same route as the daffodil route.
Councillor Newton was concerned that there would not be any
conflicts of costs or labour.
The Portfolio Holder for Environmental Services commented that
this was related to a cycle route/footpath improvement being
funded by a section 106 contribution (from the power station
budget) and that the Council was aware of the route and would
not be conflicting with the daffodil route.

54.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE PROPER OFFICER APPOINTMENTS
Consideration was given to the report of the Deputy Leader of the
Council, and the Executive Manager - Governance (Deputy
Monitoring Officer) to consider the appointment of Proper Officers
where the Chief Executive is currently the sole appointed Proper
Officer, including associated amendments to the constitution;

Page 8

-5SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 25 November 2020

together with amendments to the Financial Procedure Rules
relating to virements and grants.
In respect of the amendment to the Financial Procedure Rules,
the Executive Manager Governance (Deputy Monitoring Officer)
reported that there was a current requirement for Council to agree
acceptance of grants in excess £100k along with approving the
terms of the grant and the spend of the same. However, the
Council’s role was actually to approve any necessary budget
amendment. Approving the terms of the grant and its spend was
an executive function. In addition, some grants (such as those
issued under s31 Local Government Act 2003) were nondiscretionary and would not require a budget amendment as
funding was received for a specific purpose and had to be paid on
(such as recent Covid business grants). It was therefore proposed
that, in cases where the s151 Officer considered that there was
no material impact on the budget, she would be authorised to
certify that this was the case and that Council approval of the
grant would therefore be unnecessary. The Executive Manager –
Governance (Deputy Monitoring Officer) suggested that members
may wish to incorporate into the Financial Procedure Rules the
reference to s31 payments as an example.
DECISION:
(a)(i) Proper Officers - that all Directors, including any Directors
employed on a temporary basis, be appointed, in addition
to the Chief Executive, as Proper Officers for the following
functions which come under the Local Government Act
1972:
Section 13(3) (Acting, along with the Chairman of the
parish meeting, as Parish Trustee for any parish where
there is no parish council)
Section 83(1)-(4) (Witness and receipt of declaration of
acceptance of office)
Section 84 (Receipt of declaration of resignation)
Section 88 (Convening of meeting of the Council to fill
vacancy in the office of Chairman of the Council)
Section 210(6) and (7) (Charity functions of holders of
offices with previous authorities transferred to Proper
Officer, if no equivalent officer)
Any reference to any enactment passed before or during

Page 9

-6SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 25 November 2020

the 1971-72 session of Parliament other than the Local
Government Act 1972 or in any instrument made before 26
October, 1972 to the Clerk of the Council which, by virtue
of any provisions of the said Act, is to be construed as a
reference to the Proper Officer of the Council.
(a)(ii)

Proper Officers - that paragraph 3 of Part 3 Section F2
(Delegations to Chief Executive) of the Constitution be
amended to read as follows:
"3.0 to be (along with any other officers duly appointed to
act as Proper Officer, which appointments are detailed in
the list of Proper Officers maintained by the Senior Legal
Officer) the Proper Officer of the Council in relation to:"

55.

(b)

Terms of reference of the Joint Appointments and
Disciplinary Committee - that, arising from the resignation of
the Chief Executive, the proposed amendments shown
in Appendix A to the report be approved, and the
Constitution be amended accordingly;

(c)

Other amendments arising from the resignation of the
Chief Executive - that the Constitution be amended as
shown in Appendix B to the report to deal with any periods
during which there is no Chief Executive in post; and

(d)

Virements and Grants - that the Financial Procedure Rules
contained within the Constitution be amended as shown in
Appendix C to the report insofar as they relate to virements
and grants and that an example be added in respect of
payments under s31 Local Government Act 2003.

PLACE BASED MANAGEMENT
Consideration was given to the report of Nathan Elvery, Head of
Paid Service and Strategic Advisor, to update Members on the
current place-based management arrangements and to agree a
number of changes following the retirement of the Chief Executive
and the appointment of a Head of Paid Service/Strategic Advisor.
The Head of Paid Service/Strategic Advisor was undertaking a
review of the strategic relationship between Breckland and South
Holland and the same report was being considered by both
councils.
DECISION:
That the Council

Page 10

-7SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 25 November 2020

a) Notes the content of this report;
b) Supports the extension of the current place-based
management arrangements at both councils until the
conclusion of the strategic review in March 2021 and the
preferred option has been approved by both councils; and
c) Notes Rob Walker’s (Executive Director) resignation as a
Company Director of PSPS and agrees to the appointment
of Richard Hodgson (Executive Manager) as a
replacement;
CORONAVIRUS - CONTINUATION OF EMERGENCY
GOVERNANCE MEASURES FOR PLANNING
56.

Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Director –
Commercialisation and Growth (S151 Officer) which proposed
extending the current temporary governance measures in relation
to the determination of planning applications.
The Executive Manager Governance pointed out an error in the
report regarding the proposed amendments to the constitution;
paragraph 3.1.1 on page 87, the report referred to a 6 month
period commencing on 14 May 2020 but should in fact refer to
“the period commencing on 25 November 2020 and concluding
on the date of the AGM of Full Council in May 2021”.
Members commented on the overall success of measures,
however, comments have been received regarding preconsultation which has taken longer than usual, particularly
regarding conservation matters. Members requested whether
measures could be taken to improve these processes. The
Planning and Building Control Manager agreed to discuss
improvements with the Planning team.
DECISION:
a) That the protocol/delegation for determination of planning
applications, as set out in Appendix A to the report, be
approved until such time as the report referred to in
paragraph 1.2 of the report is considered by the Council at
its AGM in May 2021, at which point the current temporary
planning delegations will expire and the Council will either
adopt new permanent planning delegations or the planning
delegations will revert to those contained in the
Constitution immediately prior to 13 May 2020
b) That the Constitution remains amended as shown in

Page 11

-8SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 25 November 2020

Appendix B (but subject to further amendment as set out in
(c) below), all such amendments to apply until such time as
the report referred to in paragraph 1.2 of the report is
considered by the Council at its AGM in May 2021, at
which point the amendments will expire.
c) That the wording of the proposed amendments to the
constitution set out in Appendix B to the report, be changed
at Part 3 Section F3 Paragraph 3.1.1 as follows: deletion of
the words “six month period commencing 14 May 2020”
and insertion of the words “period commencing on 25
November 2020”.
57.

REVISED LICENSING ACT STATEMENT OF PRINCIPLES
Consideration was given to the report of the Portfolio Holder Public Protection to consider the proposed draft Statement of
Licensing Policy (2021 to 2026).
The Statement had been fully re-written and had been subject to
statutory consultation. A consultation response from the police
had resulted in an amendment to the Statement at section 4.2
(matters an applicant is expected to consider as part of their
operating schedule). Further consideration would be given, the
following year, to whether the suggested amendment should be
mandatory.
The Statement had since been endorsed by the Policy
Development Panel and the Committee of the Licensing Authority
and the Chairman thanked the Licensing team for their continued
hard work.
DECISION:
That the Statement of Licensing Policy be approved.

58.

MHCLG NEXT STEPS ACCOMMODATION PROGRAMME
Consideration was given to the report of the Leader of the Council
and the Executive Director Commercialisation (S151 Officer) to
consider the offer of £399,255 in time limited grant funding from
MHCLG/Homes England.
The Executive Manager Governance clarified that at 5.6.1 the
latest date or properties to be in SHDC ownership was 31 March
2021.

Page 12

-9SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 25 November 2020

Members commented that council tax payers would be
subsidising the occupants of the proposed units and should be
made aware. Concerns were raised regarding the sourcing of
properties across the district and whether Ward Members would
be consulted based on their knowledge of their local areas.
Members also commented on the importance of ensuring that
units will be made available to local homeless people.
The Strategic Housing Manager advised:
•

•

•

The subsidising of the units will be subject to
financial modelling once properties have been
identified and could potentially make a return on
investment for the council.
No properties had been selected yet and Ward
Members would be consulted where possible (not
on every property or suggestion due to timeframes
of completing purchases).
No firm decisions on the expected location of
properties had yet been made. The Council was
looking at property criteria in Spalding as one of the
best areas due to proximity of services.

The Leader of the Council confirmed that Ward Members will be
engaged in meaningful discussion when properties are submitted
for consideration.
Councillor Gibson commented on the deadline date of 31 March
2021 not allowing officers a lot of time to deliver the outcome and
Councillor Lawton clarified that the units must be available for
occupation (not occupied) by that deadline.
Members asked:
•

•
•
•
•

Would there be any consultation with residents of
neighbouring properties to units selected and how
would any anti-social behaviour or noise complaints
be handled should they be forthcoming?
How would external areas around the units be
maintained?
Would provision be made to support occupants of
the units specifically surrounding issues with mental
health/drug or alcohol abuse?
Do the units have to be individual or could they be a
collective unit?
If an occupant is housed in a unit who then chooses
to leave, what is the responsibility of the Council
regarding a duty of care to that individual?

Page 13

- 10 SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 25 November 2020

The Strategic Housing Manager responded:
•

•
•
•
•

It is not intended that there will be any consultation
with neighbours to units selected and that nuisance
reports will be handled by a dedicated officer funded
through the grant.
The maintenance of outside areas will be the
responsibility of the Council and will be factored into
the financial business case.
Support would be provided to residents but we are
unable to comment on whether it would be specific
to those issues.
The Council was advised that upon submitting the
bid it would be preferable to have disparate units
across the district rather than one unit.
The criteria for occupants moving in and moving on
had yet to be devised. This was not accommodation
provided under a statutory homelessness duty so if
an individual chooses not to stay that will be their
choice.

Members commented that other local authorities are doing the
same and we should use them as examples and officers advised
that they are happy to work with other local agencies and take
advice and information on how the model works in other areas.

DECISION:
a)

That the authority approves the receipt and spend of
the MHCLG grant of £399,255, comprising £289,190
capital and £110,075 revenue, in time-limited
funding in accordance with Financial Procedure
Rule 3.8(h) and the necessary amendments to the
budget required for this project.

b)

That Council notes the requirement for additional
funding of approximately £400,000 to support this
programme of activity and that this will be funded
from the Growth and Commercialisation –
Acquisitions Fund on a case by case basis.

NOMINATIONS FOR COMMITTEES AND OTHER SEATS AND
PROPOSED CHANGES TO THE CONSTITUTION.
59.

The Leader of the Council apologised for an error in the

Page 14

- 11 SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 25 November 2020

nominated substitute members for Joint Appointments and
Disciplinary Committee which should read Councillor Sneath and
Councillor Redgate instead of Lord Porter and Councillor Drury.
Joint Appointments and Disciplinary Committee
Substitute members (currently all vacant seats)
Councillor Newton
Councillor Redgate
Councillor Sneath
South East Lincolnshire Joint Strategic Strategic Planning
Committee
Councillor Grocock to replace Councillor Gambba-Jones
PSPS
Councillor Grocock to replace Councillor Coupland
Richard Hodgson to replace Rob Walker
Welland Homes Board Directors/Shareholder Representative
Councillor Tyrrell to replace Councillor Drury
Councillor Seymour appointed to Conservative Group vacancy
Councillor Grocock to replace Councillor Lawton as Shareholder
Representative.
South Holland Local Housing CIC (South Holland Homes)
Councillors Casson, Coupland, Drury and Redgate to replace
Councillors Biggadike and Porter, Matthew Hogan and former
Councillor Paul Przyzslak (in the case of the latter, a formal
resignation is awaited and until Mr Przyzslak retires from the
Board this will result in one additional director).
Members confirmed they are content with the changes set out in
the agenda (including the above amendment).
ANY OTHER ITEMS WHICH THE CHAIRMAN DECIDES ARE
URGENT
60.

There were none.
61.

EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC
Councillor Newton expressed concern at taking this matter in

Page 15

- 12 SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 25 November 2020

exempt session as she felt that many members of the public
would be keen to hear the discussion about a public building.
The Executive Manager for Governance explained that the report
was exempt as the proposals set out throughout the report had an
impact on staff. The Council always sought, where possible, to
have open debate with confidential appendices but the nature of
the report made that difficult. A summary minute would be made
available to the public.
Councillor Newton indicated a desire to ask a question on the
report, in open session, even if a full answer could not be given
until the meeting entered exempt session. She was confident that
her question would not divulge any exempt information.
Councillor Newton therefore asked why, at a time when the
building is closed and we hoped to be ready to reopen at first
opportunity following lockdown, repairs and maintenance issues
had only just come to light. Councillor Newton had asked, in April
or May, if repairs could be undertaken during lockdown in
readiness for reopening. The Council appeared to have been
reactive, when it could have been be proactive. Councillor
Newton also questioned why the building was not ready to reopen
and reported that Boston was ready to open the following week.
It was then moved and seconded that the Council excludes the
press and public.
DECISION:
That, under section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972,
the press and public be excluded from the meeting for the
following item of business on the grounds that it involves the likely
disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraphs 1 & 3
of Schedule 12A of the Act.
COVID IMPLICATIONS ON THE SOUTH HOLLAND CENTRE
OPERATIONS
62.

Consideration was given to the report of the Leader of the Council
and Executive Director – Commercialisation (S151 Officer) to set
out the current position and potential options for the South
Holland Centre.
Officers had made a bid for Government funding the purpose of
which was to maintain the viability of arts, culture and heritage
industries and could be used either (i) to fully or partially reopen
such facilities; or (ii) to ensure that such facilities were in a

Page 16

- 13 SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 25 November 2020

position to reopen at a future date.
The Council’s bid was for the latter purpose and a sum of
£170,860 had been awarded – which the Council was now asked
accept.
Councillor Newton and other opposition group members raised
concerns about the assumptions that appeared to have been
made in submitting an application for future reopening rather than
immediate reopening or partial reopening. One example was the
assumption of a lack of customer confidence – and cited the
number of other reopened cinemas. Similarly, pro-active
opportunities appeared to have been missed – such as utilising
the Function Hall for catering at a time when the Beales and Hills
cafés were closing.
Concern was also raised that officers were estimating a period of
eight weeks to get the Centre ready for reopening.
The Portfolio Holder for Communities and Facilities responded
that officers and members had a ‘can do’ attitude but reminded
members that the Council also had an overarching duty to keep
people safe, especially during the Covid emergency, and that it
should not encourage mass gatherings. The Portfolio Holder also
reported that, during closure, the Council had undertaken a
thorough survey to identify necessary repairs.
Councillor Alcock opined that, as the grant application had been
made on the basis of future rather than immediate reopening,
debating the options now was somewhat academic. He
considered that there would have been merit in re-opening for
wider social and cultural need in district, especially with Covid
affecting mental health. He felt that the building did lend itself to
being used in responsible way. Consideration could have been
given to things like tea dances or cinema use for a reduced
audience, with appropriate safety measures implemented. Older
films could be shown for so long as new films were not being
released.
The Portfolio Holder agreed that cultural/social needs and mental
wellbeing were very important, but this had to be balanced
against health risks as well as the level of uncertainty in
forecasting potential income in such challenging circumstances.
The Communities Manager reiterated that the bid was to support
the Centre to be open, sustainably, when viable and cost
effective. There was a great deal of uncertainty in the cinema
industry, with films delayed and others going straight to streaming

Page 17

- 14 SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 25 November 2020

with audiences watching from home. When cinemas were able to
reopen on 4 July only 80 opened out of 840 nationally. In terms
of the best option to protect the Centre and its services for the
future, the application to arts council had focussed on ensuring
the Council was able to open at a later date when confidence had
improved.
Safeguarding older residents who are currently shielding was a
key priority, and nationally it appeared that many people were not
confident in leaving their homes. As a result, some cinemas that
had opened were now closing again. Live shows in particular
needed to have a significant size of audience to be economically
viable. Function Hall and catering events also needed a lot of
people to make them financially viable. In addition, when applying
for arts council funding, all budgets, costs, predictive income and
anticipated shortfall figures were required. If the Council didn’t
then meet its projected income during that period, a bigger
shortfall would have resulted than if the Centre had been closed.
Councillor Newton reported that she had read the bid and that
Arts Council money was available to enable such facilities to open
and stay open. She was also concerned that, when April arrives,
the Council would still not be ready to reopen. Councillor Walsh
opined that it came down to attitude to risk, and that private
enterprise would be concerned to maximise assets and increase
both footfall and income.
The Communities Manager reminded Council that Arts Council
funding had been made available either to reopen (fully or
partially) now or to enable future reopening. The Portfolio Holder
added that, as set out in paragraph 1.4 of the report, many private
cinemas had not reopened immediately.
Councillor Astill considered that it was unfortunate that the Centre
was closed, particularly given footfall in town centre. He didn’t,
however, believe confidence in attending cinemas had returned.
After the previous lockdown had been lifted he had visited the
cinema in Peterborough and it had been all but empty. He agreed
with the Communities Manager that people were choosing to
watch streaming services because they felt safer at home. It was,
however, important that the Centre be ready to reopen and this
funding was necessary for that purpose.
The Portfolio Holder for Environmental Services agreed that the
Council needed to be proactive in preparing to reopen when it
was safe for the right number of people to attend. It was not wise
to encourage people to gather in groups and the Council’s
approach to this pandemic was why South Holland had such a

Page 18

- 15 SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 25 November 2020

low infection rate. He criticised certain members who appeared to
be so encouraging and who should, he felt, be setting an example
when they themselves should be shielding but were not doing so.
The member concerned responded that she had been working to
support her community during Covid.
The Portfolio Holder for Environmental Services supported the
report to ensure that the Centre would be ready to reopen at the
right time. He did not believe that people were pushing for early
reopening. The Portfolio Holder for Assets and Planning agreed;
he and his family and friends were regular users of the Centre but
they were not confident to return yet – that may not be until a
vaccine is released.
Councillor Tennant felt that a more robust and detailed report
would have assisted the Council in considering the matter. He
also felt that there should have been engagement with members
prior to submitting the grant application.
The Portfolio Holder for Commercialisation and Growth had, as
part of his portfolio, responsibility for the town centre. He was
very concerned about the impact on the town centre but he
agreed indoor gatherings were unsafe. The safe and sensible
thing to do was to be ready for future reopening.
The Leader of the Council felt that the Centre was a drain on the
Council’s resources at the best of times. That was now
compounded by the fact that the Centre was unable to generate
income due to the pandemic. The Government had offered a
lifeline and it was up to members to decide whether they wanted
to accept it. A great many people would not have the confidence
to visit an arts venue when that action put their lives at risk. The
Leader was also aware that a great many commercial venues had
either closed to the public, or the public had insufficient
confidence to attend, from concerts to football matches.
Councillor Brewis supported the point made by the Leader of the
Council and he did not consider it appropriate to encourage
people to congregate, particularly given the Government’s
announcement around relaxing restrictions over the Christmas
period.
Councillor Seymour also agreed with the Leader’s comments, and
expressed his own concerns about visiting indoor spaces – even
visiting hospital.

Page 19

- 16 SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 25 November 2020

DECISION:
1.

2.

That (in accordance with Financial Procedure Rule
3.8(h)) the £170,860 awarded by Arts Council England
as part of the DCMS Culture Recovery Fund for the
South Holland Centre be received and spent in
accordance with the bid.
That Full Council recommend to the Leader to approve
the extended closure of the South Holland Centre for
the remainder of the current financial year.

(The meeting ended at 9.24 pm)
(End of minutes)

Page 20

Issued – 12 January 2021

KEY DECISION PLAN

Representations in respect of all the matters shown should be sent in writing, at least one week before the date or period the decision
is likely to be made, to:
Democratic Services, Council Offices, Priory Road, Spalding, Lincolnshire, PE11 2XE
Telephone: 01775 764451 Fax: 01775 711253 Email: demservices@sholland.gov.uk
The Key Decision Plan shows all Key decisions that the Council is likely to make over the next twelve months

Page 21

The Key Decision Plan is updated on a rolling basis and shows the decisions that will be considered and the date when the decision is
expected to be made. In accordance with the Council’s Constitution the DECISIONS detailed within this document, unless otherwise
stated, come into force and may then be implemented on the expiry of a 5 working day call-in period from the date of publication of
any decision.
Key decisions are: “A decision which, in relation to an executive function, has a significant effect on communities in two or more
Wards of the Council and / or is likely to result in the Authority incurring expenditure, generating income or making savings in any
single financial year above the threshold of £75,000 in respect of revenue expenditure and £180,000 in respect of capital expenditure.”

PORTFOLIO
HOLDER /
SUBJECT

PURPOSE OF DECISION

CONSULTEES AND
METHOD OF
CONSULTATION

1

SUPPORTING
DOCUMENTS

LIKELY DATE OF
DECISION AND WHO
WILL MAKE DECISION

Agenda Item 9.

Significant decisions are: 1. A decision made in connection with setting the Council Tax; 2. A decision to approve any matter relating
to a Policy or Strategic Plan; 3. Any non-Executive decision which significantly affects the community in two or more wards or electoral
divisions. Some of the decisions will be recommendations to full Council, particularly if they impact on the Budget and the Policy
Framework (comprising of statutory plans and strategies)

PORTFOLIO
HOLDER /
SUBJECT
Portfolio Holder
for HRA &
Private Sector
Housing

PURPOSE OF DECISION

CONSULTEES AND
METHOD OF
CONSULTATION

Fire door replacement and associated
fire compliance works to sheltered
schemes

SUPPORTING
DOCUMENTS

LIKELY DATE OF
DECISION AND WHO
WILL MAKE DECISION
Housing Landlord
Manager, or any other
officer with delegation.
Not before 3rd Nov 2020

Fire door and
Compliance
contract

Page 22

Property
acquisition to
support Housing
Options service
delivery...

Acquisition of a property for the Next
Steps Accommodation Programme

Portfolio Holder
for HRA &
Private Sector
Housing

To procure a contractor for the
installation of kitchens and bathrooms
to the Councils housing stock

Portfolio Holder for Assets
& Planning, or Leader
Not before 8th Dec 2020

Housing Landlord
Manager, or any other
officer with delegation.
Not before 31st Dec 2020

Kitchen and
Bathroom
upgrade
programme

2

PORTFOLIO
HOLDER /
SUBJECT
Portfolio Holder
for HRA &
Private Sector
Housing

PURPOSE OF DECISION

CONSULTEES AND
METHOD OF
CONSULTATION

To procure a contractor to undertake
paining and repairs to the Councils
housing stock

SUPPORTING
DOCUMENTS

LIKELY DATE OF
DECISION AND WHO
WILL MAKE DECISION
Housing Landlord
Manager, or any other
officer with delegation.
Not before 31st Dec 2020

Painting and
Repairs

Page 23

Public Sector
Partnership
Services Limited

To consider a request to admit a third
shareholder and to agree associated
changes to the Joint Venture
Shareholder Agreement

Leader

Approval of
Welland Homes
dividend or
charitable
donation
payment

To approve a dividend or charitable
donation by Welland Homes in
accordance with the Company’s
Dividend and Charitable Donation
policy, and where a charitable donation
is preferred, to approve the
beneficiary(ies) of the Charitable
Donation.

Portfolio Holder for Assets
& Planning, or Leader.

Not before 8th Jan 2021

Not before 8th Jan 2021

3

PORTFOLIO
HOLDER /
SUBJECT
Portfolio Holder
for HRA &
Private Sector
Housing

PURPOSE OF DECISION

CONSULTEES AND
METHOD OF
CONSULTATION

Funding has been made available to
improve the energy efficiency to
homes within South Holland.

SUPPORTING
DOCUMENTS

LIKELY DATE OF
DECISION AND WHO
WILL MAKE DECISION
Housing Landlord
Manager, or any other
officer with delegation.
Not before 14th Jan 2021

Energy efficiency
works to council
properties

Page 24

Portfolio Holder
for Communities
& Facilities

The procurement of a contract to
undertake works to the Councils
assets is required. The contract will
allow use by the HRA if required

Executive Director Commercialisation (S151),
or any other officer with
delegation.

Plumbing and
General
Maintenance
Contract
Portfolio Holder
for HRA &
Private Sector
Housing

Before 31 Jan 2021

There is a requirement to procure a
contract for works to commercial
assets owned by the Council. The
contract is intended to enable
occasional use if required for the
Councils properties

Executive Director Commercialisation (S151),
or any other officer with
delegation.
Before 31 Jan 2021

Electrical Works
Contract

4

PORTFOLIO
HOLDER /
SUBJECT
Portfolio Holder
for
Environmental
Services

PURPOSE OF DECISION

CONSULTEES AND
METHOD OF
CONSULTATION

SUPPORTING
DOCUMENTS

LIKELY DATE OF
DECISION AND WHO
WILL MAKE DECISION

To provide an update on potential
improvements to the Daffodil Route
between Pinchbeck Road and Johnson
Hospital utilising section 106 funding to
improve health and well being
opportunities

Cabinet 16 Feb 2021, or
Leader.

To consider the business case relating
to a potential acquisition project to
purchase 7 s106 units within the
district.

Cabinet 16 Feb 2021, or
Leader.

Daffodil Route
Improvements

Page 25

Portfolio Holder
for HRA &
Private Sector
Housing

South Holland District
Council 3 Mar 2021

Acquisition
project to
purchase S106
units

5

PORTFOLIO
HOLDER /
SUBJECT
Portfolio Holder
for Finance,
Strategies,
Partnerships

Page 26

Treasury
Management
Policy &
Treasury
Management
Strategy
Statement,
Minimum
Revenue
Provision Policy
Statement and
Annual
Investment
Strategy
2021/22.

PURPOSE OF DECISION

CONSULTEES AND
METHOD OF
CONSULTATION

To provide scrutiny to the Treasury
Management Policy and Treasury
Management Strategy Statement,
Minimum Revenue Provision Policy
and Annual Investment Strategy
2021/22 prior to its submission to
Cabinet and Council.

SUPPORTING
DOCUMENTS

LIKELY DATE OF
DECISION AND WHO
WILL MAKE DECISION
Cabinet 16 Feb 2021, or
Leader.
South Holland District
Council 3 Mar 2021

6

PORTFOLIO
HOLDER /
SUBJECT
Portfolio Holder
for Assets &
Planning

PURPOSE OF DECISION

CONSULTEES AND
METHOD OF
CONSULTATION

To agree a framework for future HRA
housing development investment
decisions.

SUPPORTING
DOCUMENTS

LIKELY DATE OF
DECISION AND WHO
WILL MAKE DECISION
Cabinet 27 Apr 2021, or
Leader
South Holland District
Council 12 May 2021

HRA
Development
Framework

Page 27

*Cabinet Membership
The Lord Porter of Spalding CBE (Leader)
Councillor C N Worth (Deputy Leader of the Council)
Councillor P E Coupland (Deputy Leader)
Councillor A Casson (Portfolio Holder)
Councillor H Drury (Portfolio Holder)
Councillor R Gambba-Jones (Portfolio Holder)
Councillor R Grocock (Portfolio Holder)
Councillor C J Lawton (Portfolio Holder)
Councillor E J Sneath (Portfolio Holder)
Councillor G J Taylor (Portfolio Holder)

If you have any comments or queries regarding any of the entries in the Key Decision Plan please contact:
Democratic Services, Council Offices, Priory Road, Spalding, Lincolnshire, PE11 2XE
Telephone: 01775 764451 Fax: 01775 711253 Email: demservices@sholland.gov.uk

7

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 10.
SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL
Report of:

Cabinet

To:

South Holland District Council Wednesday, 20 January 2021

(Author:

Christine Morgan Democratic Services Officer)

Subject

Report from Cabinet meeting held on 15 December 2020

Purpose:

To consider recommendations of the Cabinet in respect of:
a) Local Council Tax Support Scheme 2021/22 – To seek Council approval of
the final proposals for the Local Council Tax Support Scheme 2021/22
(Cabinet minute 50) (Cabinet agenda item 8)

Recommendation(s):
a) Continuation of the current Local Council Tax Support scheme, including uprating in line
with DWP’s annual update of allowances and premiums for housing benefit for 2021/22;
b) Extend the backdating period for working age claimants from one month to three months;
and
c) Delegation to Executive Director, Commercialisation (S151) in consultation with the
Portfolio Holder for Finance to approve the final scheme in line with this report, and any
administrative and minor changes.

1.0

BACKGROUND

1.1

Article 4 of the Council’s Constitution provides that only the full Council may exercise the
functions of approving, adopting or amending the policy framework and budget, and
adopting or changing the Constitution. Staffing matters are also a Council function. The
Cabinet however has responsibility for advising the Council on such matters. At its meeting
on 15 December 2020, the Cabinet made recommendations to Council in respect of the
above item which may affect budget and policy framework, Constitution or comprise
staffing issues.

1.2

The remainder of this report details the recommendations of the Cabinet which must be
read in conjunction with the individual reports to Cabinet, copies of which are attached as
appendices.

2.0

Local Council Tax Support Scheme 2021/22
(Report submitted to Cabinet – Item 8 attached)
Consideration was given to the report of the Portfolio Holder for Finance and Executive
Director – Commercialisation (S151) which provided information about final proposals for
the Local Council Tax Support scheme 2021/22.

Page 29

Members commented that, in reading the proposals for the Local Council Tax Support
Scheme, it highlighted the complexities of the Council Tax setting process, and that a clear
explanation of the process would be helpful.
It was agreed that a finance briefing detailing how the Council Tax was set and how this
linked into the budget, be arranged for members, ahead of the Budget Setting process.
RECOMMENDED TO COUNCIL:
a) That the current Local Council Tax Support scheme, including uprating in line with
DWP’s annual update of allowances and premiums for housing benefit for 2021/22, be
continued;
b) That the backdating period for working age claimants be extended from one month to
three months; and
c) That delegation be given to the Executive Director – Commercialisation (S151) in
consultation with the Portfolio Holder for Finance to approve the final scheme in line
with this report, and any administrative and minor changes.
(Other options considered:
 Option two – Continuation of the current scheme into 2021/22, uprated in line with
DWP uprating of allowances and premiums for housing benefit, but do not extend
the backdating period for working age claimants.
Reasons for decision:
 Continuation of the current scheme for 2021/22 would provide continuity for Council
Tax support recipients, and more certainty and stability in respect of the liability of
Council Tax. Increasing backdating in appropriate circumstances to three months
would provide additional support to households and may help prevent debt.)

Background papers:Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post:
Telephone Number
Email:

None

Christine Morgan Democratic Services Officer
cmorgan@sholland.gov.uk

Key Decision:

N

Exempt Decision:

N

Appendices attached to this report: (list appendices below or delete)
Appendix A
Cabinet Agenda Item 8
Appendix B
Cabinet Agenda Item 8 – Appendix A
Appendix C
Cabinet Agenda Item 8 – Appendix B

Page 30

SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL
Report of:
(S151)

Portfolio Holder for Finance and Executive Director - Commercialisation

To:

Cabinet Tuesday, 15 December 2020
South Holland District Council – 20 January 2021

(Author:

Sharon Hammond Head of Revenues & Benefits)

Subject

Local Council Tax Support Scheme 2021/22

Purpose:

For each financial year a billing authority must consider whether to revise its
Local Council Tax Support scheme, or replace it with another scheme. This
report seeks Cabinet decision on the final proposals for the 2021/22 scheme,
to be presented to Council for approval on 20 January 2021.

Recommendations:
1) That Cabinet approves, and recommends to Council: a) Continuation of the current Local Council Tax Support scheme, including uprating in line
with DWP’s annual update of allowances and premiums for housing benefit for 2021/22;
b) Extend the backdating period for working age claimants from one month to three months;
and
c) Delegation to Executive Director, Commercialisation (S151) in consultation with the
Portfolio Holder for Finance to approve the final scheme in line with this report, and any
administrative and minor changes.

1.0

BACKGROUND

1.1

The Local Council Tax Support (CTS) scheme replaced the former national Council Tax
Benefit (CTB) scheme from April 2013.

1.2

Each year the Council is required to consider whether to review its Local CTS scheme. The
Local Government Finance Act 2012 sets out the process by which Councils must approve
a scheme. Regulations include protection for pensioners but allow Councils to make
changes in the way that support is calculated for working age claimants.

1.3

Where Councils seek to amend their scheme it is necessary to consult major preceptors
and stakeholders to inform a final scheme design.

1.4

The current South Holland scheme provides a maximum amount of 70% support for
working age claimants. It protects War Pensioners, and from 2019/20 introduced a new
class for Care Leavers aged 18-21.

Page 31

1.5

A number of significant changes were introduced in financial year 2017/18, and these are
summarised below for information: •

•
•

•
•
•
•
•

Second Adult Rebate removed from 2019/20. (This affected households where the
claimant’s own income is too high to receive CTS, but there were other adult(s) living in
the household whose combined income is low).
A minimum level of CTS at £5 per week was introduced. (Where the amount of CTS
each week would be less than £5, no CTS is now awarded).
An increase in non-dependent deductions by 10% was implemented. (A nondependent
is an adult living with a claimant but who is not dependent upon them, for example an
adult son or daughter. Non-dependents are now expected to contribute more towards
the household’s Council Tax bill).
Restricted CTS to Band D. (This means claimants living in dwellings that are banded E,
F, G or H have their entitlement to CTS calculated at the level of Council Tax Band D).
Reduced the Capital Limit to £8,000. (This means claimants with more than £8,000 in
capital are no longer entitled to any CTS).
Reduced the lower capital threshold to £3,000. (This lowered the amount that is
disregarded in the calculation of CTS).
Limited backdating to 1 month. (This change was in line with the changes made by
DWP for Housing Benefit).
Removed family premium for new claims. (This change was in line with changes made
by DWP for Housing Benefit).

2.0

CURRENT SCHEME REVIEW

2.1

At July 2020 the forecasted amount of CTS discount for 2020/21 was £4,310,244, with a
total caseload of 5,193 of which 2,380 (46%) are working age, compared to 2,813 (54%)
pensioners. The working age claimant element costs are approximately £1,677,865, with
£171,142 (10.2%) borne by this council.

2.2

This is higher than expected as a result of the COVID-19 impact which has increased CTS
take-up. With the COVID-19 position being unprecedented it is not possible to forecast with
any degree of certainty, but it would be reasonable to anticipate further increase in CTS
caseload and expenditure through the remainder of this financial year.

2.3

The following table shows 2020/21 forecast expenditure and indicates the potential cost to
South Holland District Council, and the other major precepting authorities.

CTS Expenditure
Cost to South Holland District Council (approx. 10.2%)
Cost to Lincolnshire County Council (approx. 75.6%)
Cost to Police and Crime Commissioner (approx. 14.2%)
2.4

2020/21 forecast
£4,310,244
£439,645
£3,258,544
£612,055

The Council Tax in-year collection rate as a percentage in 2019/20 was marginally lower
than previous year, however over £3.2million more Council Tax was collected in 2019/20.
Factors that affect in-year collection include the reduced level of CTS awarded following
changes introduced in the 2017/18 scheme and people’s ability to pay, the roll out of
Universal Credit (UC) and now the impacts and effects on households due to the COVID-19
pandemic.

Page 32

2.5

The Local Government Finance Act 2012 and subsequent regulations granted billing
authorities greater discretion over discounts and exemptions for certain categories of empty
dwelling from 1st April 2013.

2.6

Changes, decided by Council in January 2013, were introduced from 1 April 2013 to
increase the council tax base and potential revenue to help fill the funding gap arising from
the cut to grant in respect of CTS. Following a resolution by Council, from 1 April 2019, the
premium Council Tax on dwellings which are empty, unoccupied and unfurnished for more
than 2 years increased from 50% to 100%, increasing Council Tax payable to 200%. From
1 April 2020, for dwellings empty more than 5 years, the premium increased to 200%,
increasing Council Tax payable to 300%. From 1 April 2021, for dwellings empty more than
10 years the premium will increase to 300%, taking Council Tax payable to 400%.

2.7

Additional COVID-19 support for 2020/21
As part of its response to COVID-19, the government announced in the budget on 11
March 2020 that it would provide local authorities with £500million of new grant funding to
support economically vulnerable residents in 2020/21. South Holland’s share of this
2020/21 grant funding is £461,387. The Government expectation is for local authorities to
use their discretionary powers under Section 13 A (1) (c) of the Local Government Finance
Act 1992 to provide all recipients of working age Council tax Support with a further
reduction of up to £150 in 2020/21.

2.8

2,961 eligible council tax accounts have been updated with the additional hardship support,
and revised bills issued. Current expenditure stands at £432k, being almost 94% of the total
fund. It is predicted this fund will be fully spent on the Government’s stated expectation,
however in the event of any remaining fund balance, this can be used to increase financial
assistance through other local support mechanisms.

3.0

ESTABLISHING A COUNCIL TAX SUPPORT SCHEME FOR 2021/22

3.1

The proposals considered, and approved for consultation, by Cabinet on 15 September
2020 are detailed below.
Continuation of the current Council Tax Support scheme, including uprating in line
with DWP’s annual update of allowances and premiums for housing benefit for
2021/22
The current unprecedented position as a result of COVID-19 presents financial impacts on
both the council and its residents. The current Council Tax Support scheme is familiar to
our customers and is relatively stable. It is considered that this is not the right time to make
fundamental changes, and indeed maintaining the current scheme for 2021/22 would help
those working age claimants maintain consistency at a time when they may be facing other
personal and financial changes and challenges.
Extend the backdating period for working age claimants from one month to three
months.
The timescale in which a new CTS application can be backdated was reduced from three
months to one month from 1 April 2017 in line with changes to housing benefit for working
age customers. To support customers that can demonstrate good cause for not applying for
CTS sooner, reversing this decision would provide an extended period of backdated

Page 33

support in appropriate cases, thereby supporting the most vulnerable who would otherwise
be left with an amount of Council Tax to pay in that period. The cost to South Holland would
be 10.2% of the amount of backdated CTS, but the overriding benefit would be provision of
support that might prevent debt and would support households in most need. This would
realign the time period for backdating CTS claims with the prescribed scheme for
pensioners which already provides for backdating of up to three months.

4.0

CONSULTATION

4.1

On 15 September 2020, Cabinet approved consultation on the proposals set out above.
The consultation exercise ran between 24 September and 20 November 2020.

4.2

Major precepting authorities have been consulted on the proposals. Lincolnshire County
Council has responded confirming it has no comments or objections to the proposals. The
Police and Crime Commissioner makes no comment in respect of the proposals included in
the consultation, but does make a proposal to introduce a discount for members of the
Special Constabulary.

4.3

The letter and details of the proposal from the Police and Crime Commissioner are
provided in Appendix B to this report. This proposal will be presented to Cabinet as a
separate report for consideration under the legislative provisions for discretionary Council
Tax reduction in Section 13A (1) (c) of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 rather than
the provisions for the Council Tax Support scheme.

4.4

The wider public consultation on the scheme proposals agreed by Cabinet in September
included publicity through local media, website and social media. A total of 25 responses
have been received. This is lower than last year. With such a low response rate it has to
be recognised that the results cannot be relied upon as being wholly representative or
statistically significant.

4.5

High level findings from the 25 consultation responses are summarised below:
•
•
•
•

4.6

56% agreed that the council should retain the main characteristics of the current
Council Tax Scheme.
40% felt that the current scheme is fair and provides support to those most vulnerable.
56% agreed we should increase the scheme in line with DWP provisions for 2021/22
and future years.
72% agreed that the council should extend the backdating period for working age
claimants.

The full consultation results are shown at Appendix A.

5.0

OPTIONS

5.1

Option 1 – recommended.
•
•

Continuation of the current Council Tax Support scheme, including uprating in line with
DWP’s annual update of allowances and premiums for housing benefit for 2021/2, and
Extend the backdating period for working age claimants from one month to three
months.

Page 34

5.2

Option 2
Continuation of the current scheme into 2021/22, uprated in line with DWP updating of
allowances and premiums for housing benefit, but do not extend the backdating period for
working age claimants.

5.3

No alternative options are proposed. Any other changes to the scheme would require
consultation.

6.0

EXPECTED BENEFITS

6.1

Continuation of the current scheme for 2021/22 will provide continuity for Council Tax
Support recipients, and more certainty and stability in respect of the liability for Council Tax.
Increasing backdating in appropriate circumstances to three month would provide additional
support to households and may help to prevent debt.

7.0

IMPLICATIONS
In preparing this report, the report author has considered the likely implications of the
decision - particularly in terms of Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues;
Constitutional & Legal; Contracts; Corporate Priorities; Crime & Disorder; Data Protection;
Equality & Diversity/Human Rights; Financial; Health & Wellbeing; Reputation; Risk
Management; Safeguarding; Staffing; Stakeholders/Consultation/Timescales;
Transformation Programme; Other. Where the report author considers that there may be
implications under one or more of these headings, these are identified below.

7.1
Constitutional & Legal
7.1.1 The Local Government Finance Act 2012 introduced the framework for localism of Council
Tax Support. The Local CTS scheme for 2021/22 must be approved by Full Council by 11th
March 2021. Any change to CTS schemes must be subject to proper process, including
consultation in order to protect the scheme from judicial review.
7.2
7.2.1

Equality & Diversity/Human Rights
The existing Local CTS scheme continues the DWP’s previous Council Tax Benefit scheme
conventions established over many years, regarding protections for vulnerable groups,
including children, the disabled and war pensioners.

7.2.2 An Equality Impact Assessment is not required
7.3
Financial
7.3.1 It is difficult to forecast the Council Tax Support scheme costs in 2020/21 with any degree
of certainty due to the current COVID-19 impacts, and the likelihood of further CTS take-up
anticipated through the rest of this year due to the uncertain economic climate.
7.3.2 Council Tax Support scheme costs in 2020/21 are forecast to be approximately £4,310,244,
of which £1,677,865 relates to working age costs, with £171,142 (10.2%) borne by this
Council.

Page 35

7.3.3 The additional cost of extending the backdating of working age claims in appropriate cases,
is not considered to be material, and will be shared as part of the collection fund with all
major preceptors. For example, at Band A, excluding parish charge, the cost of backdating
for two additional months, assuming entitlement to the maximum 70% amount of CTS,
would be around £137. The cost to SHDC would be £14, (10.2%). The number of eligible
applications is expected to be low as there will need to be a demonstration of good cause
for not applying sooner.
7.4
Stakeholders / Constitution / Timescales
7.4.1 Legislation requires consultation to be carried out with major precepting authorities and the
public where changes to the scheme are proposed. Consultation has been carried out.
7.4.2 The final scheme must be decided by 11th March preceding the year to which the scheme
relates.
8

WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED

8.1

All.

9

ACRONYMS
COVID – Coronovirus Disease
CTB – Council Tax Benefit
CTS – Council Tax Support
DWP – Department for Work and Pensions
UC – Universal Credit
UCDS – Universal Credit Data Share

Background papers:Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post:
Telephone Number
Email:

None

Sharon Hammond Head of Revenues & Benefits
Sharon.Hammond@pspsl.co.uk

Key Decision:

N

Exempt Decision:

N

This report refers to a Mandatory Service
Appendices attached to this report:
Appendix A
Consultation Results
Appendix B
Letter and Proposal from Lincolnshire Police and Crime
Commissioner

Page 36

Page 37

Page 38

Page 39

Page 40

Page 41

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 43

Page 44

Page 45

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 11.
SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL
Report of:

Portfolio Holder for Finance, Strategies, Partnerships and Executive Director Commercialisation (S151)

To:

Council, 20 January 2021

(Author:

Sharon Hammond Head of Revenues & Benefits)

Subject

Housing Benefit Subsidy Claim - 2019/20

Purpose:

To report the outcome of the 2019/20 Housing Benefit Subsidy claim audit.

Recommendations:
That Council: 1) Notes that this report has been considered by Governance and Audit Committee, and
2) Approves continuation of the disregard from the calculation of housing benefit of all income
prescribed in the Housing Benefit and Council Tax Benefit (War Pension Disregards)
Regulations 2007.

1.0

BACKGROUND

1.1

In 2019/20, the Council made payments of Housing Benefit totalling £13,678,610. The
Government reimburses the Council for this expenditure by way of Housing Benefit
subsidy. The total subsidy claimed from the Government by the Council for 2019/20
totalled £13,630,425. The Council’s claim for housing benefit subsidy is subject to an
annual audit.

1.2

Eligible overpayments, which are subsidised at 40%, contributed the main area of subsidy
difference, followed by Non Housing Revenue Account (non-HRA) Rent Rebates for people
placed in board and lodgings by the Council, where the rent exceeded the Local Housing
Allowance (LHA) rate.

1.3

KPMG undertook the 2019/20 Housing Benefit Subsidy audit, in accordance with the
Department for Work and Pension (DWP) reporting framework instruction.

1.4

The methodology involves the auditors checking a random sample of claims to confirm that
the Council has calculated benefit correctly and maintained appropriate standards of
evidence and record keeping. If the auditors identify any errors, then they perform
additional checks in those specific areas to identify the likely extent of the errors upon the
claim for subsidy. The auditors also undertake sample checks to try to identify any
replication of the errors found in the subsidy claim for the previous year.

1.5

The auditors identified some errors in the calculation of benefit or in its recording and made
an adjustment to the amount of subsidy claimed to the value of £4,902. This represents an
adjustment of 0.04% of the total subsidy claimed.

Page 47

1.6

The subsidy regime provides for a degree of error on the part of the Council and the
Council is not penalised for any overpayments that it makes due to delay or error, providing
these account for less than 0.48% of its total expenditure. After the adjustments, the
Council remained comfortably within the permitted thresholds for overpayments caused by
Local Authority delay or error.

1.7

Public Sector Partnership Services (PSPS) will use the information provided within the
letter from the auditor to inform its plans for subsidy, quality assurance and training in the
coming year.

2.0

LOCAL DISCRETIONARY MODIFIED SCHEMES

2.1

Legislation provides for certain income to be disregarded when calculating entitlement to
Housing Benefit. This includes the first £10.00 per week of any War Disablement or War
Widows Pension received by the claimant.

2.2

Under Section 134 (8) of the Social Security Administration Act 1992, Councils have the
discretion to increase the amount that is disregarded of such income. Regulations
prescribe which Pensions can be disregarded and a full list can be found in Appendix A.

2.3

South Holland District Council has used its powers in this respect for a number of years
now, and as part of the audit process this year a confirmation of the Council’s decision was
required. As the original decision is now more than ten years old, it is timely for this
decision to be reviewed as part of this report, for continuation in current and future years.

2.4

The full disregard of War Disablement Pension and War Widows Pension, which is in line
with the principles of the Armed Forces Covenant, is funded up to 75% of the total cost by
the Government. In respect of 2019/20 the cost to South Holland was £3,787.
War Disablement and War Widows Pension disregard – 2019/20
Expenditure
Government contribution
Local funding
£15,150
£11,363
£3,787

3.0

OPTIONS

3.1

Consider an alternative level of disregard by either not disregarding certain pensions, or
only disregarding a fixed amount or lower percentage of the pensions. This option would
produce small savings in subsidy loss, but these are likely to be offset by the cost of officer
time in explaining the consequences to dissatisfied benefit claimants and responding to
complaints.

3.2

Do nothing. This would have the same effect as agreeing the recommendation, in that the
current position would be maintained and the recommendation is not to move from that
position. However, the act of doing nothing could place the Council at risk of auditor
criticism in future years.

4.0

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

4.1

To note the outcome of the 2019/20 audit, and record the continuation of full disregard of
War Disablement Pension and War Widows Pension disregard in the Housing Benefit and
Council Tax Benefit (War Pension Disregards) Regulations 2007.

Page 48

5.0

EXPECTED BENEFITS

5.1

The recommendation in respect of continuation of war pension disregards demonstrates
South Holland’s commitment to the Armed Forces Covenant. The recording of this
decision will prevent the matter being raised again by the auditors next year.

6.0

IMPLICATIONS
In preparing this report, the report author has considered the likely implications of the
decision - particularly in terms of Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues;
Constitutional & Legal; Contracts; Corporate Priorities; Crime & Disorder; Data Protection;
Equality & Diversity/Human Rights; Financial; Health & Wellbeing; Reputation; Risk
Management; Safeguarding; Staffing; Stakeholders/Consultation/Timescales;
Transformation Programme; Other. Where the report author considers that there may be
implications under one or more of these headings, these are identified below.

6.1
6.1.1

Equality and Diversity / Human Rights
An impact assessment is not required. Housing Benefit is administered based on national
regulations and guidance. There is no change proposed to the local modified scheme
which covers the disregard of war pensions.

6.2
6.2.1

Financial
Housing Benefit is administered on behalf of central government, and subject to subsidy
arrangements. The council is able to keep both the subsidy, and Housing Benefit
Overpayments recovered.

6.3
6.3.1

Reputation
The continuation of disregards of War Disablement Pension and War Widows Pension
demonstrates South Holland’s commitment to the principles of the Armed Forces
Covenant.

7.0

WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED

7.1

All

8.0

ACRONYMS

8.1

DWP – Department for Work and Pensions
PSPS – Public Sector Partnership Services Ltd

Background papers:-

n/a

Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post:
Telephone Number
Email:

Sharon Hammond Head of Revenues & Benefits
01507 613306
Sharon.Hammond@pspsl.co.uk

Key Decision:

N

Page 49

Exempt Decision:

N

This report refers to a Mandatory Service
Appendices attached to this report:
Appendix A
Schedule to the Housing Benefit and Council Tax Benefit (War
Pensions Disregard) Regulations 2007

Page 50

APPENDIX 1
The Schedule to the Housing Benefit and Council Tax Benefit (War Pension Disregards)
Regulations 2007 (SI: 2007/1619 as amended by SIs 2009/3389 and 2010/2449)
THE SCHEDULE
War disablement and war widow’s pensions

PART 1
War disablement pensions
1. The war disablement pensions prescribed are—
(a) any retired pay or pension or allowance payable in respect of disablement under an
instrument specified in section 639(2) of the Income Tax (Earnings and Pensions) Act 2003;
(b) any retired pay or pension payable, to a member of the armed forces of the Crown in
respect of a disablement which is attributable to service, under—
(i)
an Order in Council made under section 3 of the Naval and Marine Pay and
Pensions Act 1865,
(ii)
the Army Pensions Warrant 1977,
(iia)
the Army Pensions (Armed Forces Pension Scheme 1975 and Attributable
Benefits Scheme) Warrant 2010
(iii)
any order or regulations made under section 2 of the Air Force (Constitution)
Act 1917,
(iv)
any order or regulations made under section 4 of the Reserve Forces Act
1996,
(v)
any instrument amending or replacing any of the instruments referred to in
paragraphs (i) to (iv), or
(vi)
any power of Her Majesty otherwise than under an enactment to make
provision about pensions for or in respect of persons who have been disabled
or have died in consequence of service as members of the armed forces of
the Crown; and
(c) a payment made under article 14(1)(b) of the Armed Forces and Reserve Forces
(Compensation Scheme) Order 2005.

PART 2
War widow’s pensions
2. The war widow’s pensions prescribed are—
(a) any pension or allowance payable to a widow, widower or surviving civil partner under an
instrument specified in section 639(2) of the Income Tax (Earnings and Pensions) Act 2003
in respect of the death or disablement of any person;
(b) a pension payable, to a widow, widower or surviving civil partner of a member of the armed
forces of the Crown in respect of death which is attributable to service, under—
(i)
an Order in Council made under section 3 of the Naval and Marine Pay and
Pensions Act 1865,
(ii)
the Army Pensions Warrant 1977,
(iia)
the Army Pensions (Armed Forces Pension Scheme 1975 and Attributable
Benefits Scheme) Warrant 2010
(iii)
any order or regulations made under section 2 of the Air Force (Constitution)
Act 1917,
(iv)
any order or regulations made under section 4 of the Reserve Forces Act
1996,
(v)
any instrument amending or replacing any of the instruments referred to in
paragraphs (i) to (iv), or
(vi)
any power of Her Majesty otherwise than under an enactment to make
provision about pensions for or in respect of persons who have been disabled
or have died in consequence of service as members of the armed forces of
the Crown; and
(c) a payment made under article 21(1)(a) of the Armed Forces and Reserve Forces
(Compensation Scheme) Order 2005.

Page 51

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 12.
SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL
Report of:

Executive Director Commercialisation (S151), Christine Marshall

To:

South Holland District Council – 20th January 2021

Author:

Sean Howsam – Treasury and Investment Manager (Public Sector
Partnership Services Ltd (PSPSL))

Subject:

Mid Term Treasury Report 2020/21

Purpose:

To provide an update of the treasury management position of the Council
as at 30th September 2020.

Recommendations:
1

That Council receives and approves the Mid Term Treasury Report 2021/21, the treasury
activity as detailed in Appendix A and the economic update from Link Group at
Appendix B as required by the CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management.

1.0

BACKGROUND

1.1

The regulatory environment places responsibility on members for the review and
scrutiny of treasury management policy and activities. This Council has delegated
these duties to the Governance and Audit Committee.

In compliance with the requirements under the Code, this treasury management report
has been submitted to the Governance and Audit Committee on 26th November 2020
for scrutiny prior to being reported to the full Council.
1.2

In December 2017, the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy, (CIPFA),
issued revised Prudential and Treasury Management Codes. As from 2020/21, all local
authorities are required to prepare a Capital Strategy which is to provide the following: • a high-level overview of how capital expenditure, capital financing and treasury
management activity contribute to the provision of services
• an overview of how the associated risk is managed
• the implications for future financial sustainability
A report setting out our Capital Strategy was taken to the full council as part of the budget
setting report on 26th February 2020.

1.3

Treasury management is defined as: “The management of the local authority’s borrowing,
investments and cash flows, its banking, money market and capital market transactions;
the effective control of the risks associated with those activities; and the pursuit of
optimum performance consistent with those risks.”
The Council operates a balanced budget, which broadly means cash raised during the
year will meet its cash expenditure. Part of the treasury management operations ensure
this cash flow is adequately planned, with surplus monies being invested in low risk
counterparties, providing adequate liquidity initially before considering maximising
investment return.
The second main function of the treasury management service is the funding of the
Council’s capital plans. These capital plans provide a guide to the borrowing need of the

Page 53

Council, essentially the longer term cash flow planning to ensure the Council can meet its
capital spending obligations. This management of longer term cash may involve
arranging long or short term loans, or using longer term cash flow surpluses, and on
occasion any debt previously drawn may be restructured to meet Council risk or cost
objectives.
1.4

The Treasury Management function is administered by Public Sector Partnership Services
Ltd on behalf of the Council.

1.5

This report has been written in accordance with the requirements of the CIPFA Code of
Practice on Treasury Management (revised 2017). The primary requirements are as
follows:
•
•
•

•
•

1.6

Creation and maintenance of a Treasury Management Policy Statement which sets
out the policies and objectives of the Council’s treasury management activities;
Creation and maintenance of Treasury Management Practices which set out the
manner in which the Council will seek to achieve those policies and objectives;
Receipt by full council of an annual Treasury Management Strategy Statement including the Annual Investment Strategy and Minimum Revenue Provision Policy for the year ahead, a Mid-year Review Report (this report) and an Annual Report
(stewardship report) covering activities during the previous year;
Delegation by the Council of responsibilities for implementing and monitoring
treasury management policies and practices and for the execution and
administration of treasury management decisions; and
Delegation by the Council of the role of scrutiny of treasury management strategy
and policies to a specific named body. For this Council the delegated body is the
Governance and Audit Committee.

Attached at Appendix A is the 2020/21 Treasury Management Strategy Statement and
Annual Investment Strategy update and at Appendix B an economic update from Link
Group (based on global and market information as at 7th October 2020).
The mid-year report has been prepared in compliance with CIPFA’s Code of Practice on
Treasury Management, and covers the following:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

An economic update for the 2020/21 financial year to 30th September 2020;
A review of the Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Annual Investment
Strategy;
The Council’s capital expenditure as set out in the capital strategy and prudential
indicators;
A review of the Council’s investment portfolio for 2020/21;
A review of the Council’s borrowing strategy for 2020/21;
A review of any debt rescheduling undertaken during 2020/21;
A review of compliance with Treasury and Prudential Limits for 2020/21.

2.0

OPTIONS

2.1

As the report is mainly an update report there are no alternative options presented.

3.0

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION

3.1

To comply with the CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management 2017.

Page 54

4.0

EXPECTED BENEFITS

4.1

The report provides Members with a summary of the economy, the effect it has had on
financial markets and the treasury activity during 2020/21.

5.0

IMPLICATIONS

5.1

Constitution & Legal

5.1.1

This Council is required to produce a mid-term treasury report to comply with the CIPFA
Code of Practice on Treasury Management 2017. The report has no implications which
would affect the constitution and does not therefore warrant a further change in the
constitution.

5.1.2

Plans and strategies for control of the Council’s borrowing, investments, capital
expenditure and minimum revenue provision form part of the Council’s policy framework
and are therefore a non-executive (Council) function under the Council’s Constitution.

5.2

Financial

5.2.1

This mid-term report provides a review of the treasury activity for the first six month of the
2020/21 financial year.

5.2.2

The Council held £50.171m of investments and £3.227m of loans to Welland Homes as at
30 September 2020. The investment portfolio yield for the first six months of the year is
0.756% against a benchmark of 0.106% (average 3 month LIBID).

5.2.3

The Council’s budgeted investment return for 2020/21 is £544,200 (GF £383,000, HRA
£161,200) and performance for the year to date is £202,340 which is £70,000 below the
profiled budget. The outturn is currently projected to be £325,000 which is £219,200
below the estimate. This budget shortfall can be attributed to the current level of
exceptionally low interest rates available.

5.3

Risk Management

5.3.1

The Council’s priority is the security of its investments.

5.4

Stakeholders / Consultation / Timescales

5.4.1

The report required pre decision scrutiny and was considered at the Governance and
Audit Committee meeting on 26th November 2020 prior to the minutes being submitting to
Council for approval.

5.4.2

Link Group have been consulted in relation to the compilation of this report.

6.0

WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED

6.1

Due to budgetary considerations all wards are affected.

7.0

ACRONYMS

7.1
7.2
7.3
7.4

CPI – Consumer Price Index
CIPFA – Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy
CFR – Capital Financing Requirement
DMADF - Debt Management Account Deposit Facility

Page 55

7.5
7.6
7.7
7.8
7.9
7.10
7.11
7.12
7.13
7.14

ECB – European Central Bank
GDP – Gross Domestic Product
HRA – Housing Revenue Account
LIBID – London Inter Bank Bid (Investment Rate)
MPC – Monetary Policy Committee
MMF – Money Market Funds
PSPSL – Public Sector Partnership Services Ltd
PWLB – Public Works Loan Board
QE – Quantitative Easing
TMSS – Treasury Management Strategy Statement

Background papers:a)

SHDC Treasury Management Strategy Statement, Minimum Revenue Provision Policy
Statement and Annual Investment Strategy 2020/21.

Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post
Telephone Number:
Email:

Sean Howsam – Treasury and Investment Manager (PSPSL)
01507 613248
Sean.Howsam@pspsl.co.uk

Key Decision:

No

Exempt Decision:

No

This report refers to a Mandatory Service
Appendices attached to this report:
Appendix A - Treasury Management Strategy Statement & Annual Investment Strategy Update
2020/21.
Appendix B – Economic Update (from Link Group)

Page 56

APPENDIX A
Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Annual Investment Strategy Update
2020/21
The Treasury Management Strategy Statement (TMSS) for 2020/21 was approved by
Council on 26th February 2020.
There are no policy changes to the TMSS; the details in this report update the position in the
light of the updated economic position and budgetary changes already approved.
The Council’s Capital Position (Prudential Indicators)
This part of the report is structured to update:
 The Council’s capital expenditure plans;
 How these plans are being financed;
 The impact of the changes in the capital expenditure plans on the prudential
indicators and the underlying need to borrow; and
 Compliance with the limits in place for borrowing activity.
Prudential Indicator for Capital Expenditure
The following table shows the revised estimates and financing of capital expenditure and the
changes since the capital programme was agreed at the Budget. It also highlights the
original supported and unsupported elements of the capital programme, and the expected
financing arrangements of this capital expenditure.
Capital Expenditure

Housing Revenue Account
(HRA)
General Fund
Commercial activities/nonfinancial investments *
Total spend
Financed by:
Capital receipts
HRA Capital receipts – Land
Sales
Capital grants and
Contributions
Major Repairs Reserve
Direct Revenue Funding
1-4-1 receipts
Shared Ownership Sale
Proceeds
Total financing
Borrowing need

2020-21
Original
Programme
£’000

2020-21
Latest
Approved
£’000

Actual
As At
30-09-20
£’000

2020-21
Forecast
Outturn
£’000

9,529

12,077

2,037

9,498

3,795

6,080

509

5,498

2,934

4,306

1

3,224

16,258

22,463

2,547

18,220

3,114
410

3,114
410

990
-

3,114
410

1,241

2,474

567

2,474

3,235
4,197
482
409

5,416
6,137
482
409

614
133
31
212

5,416
3,465
482
409

13,088
3,170

18,442
4,021

2,547
-

15,770
2,450

*Commercial activities/non-financial investments relate to areas such as capital expenditure
on investment properties, loans to third parties etc.

Page 57

APPENDIX A
The General Fund capital expenditure programme has increased from an original budget of
£6.729m to £10.386m. The key items that have resulted in this increase were due to the roll
over from the previous year and are as follows:





Capital Acquisitions for Growth and Commercialisations £500k
Welland Homes £851k
Food Enterprise Zone £1.061m
Housing Infrastructure Funding £1m

The borrowing need shown in the above table is the Council’s purchase of an additional
equity stake in Welland Homes and the loans made to Welland Homes. This capital
expenditure has not been financed and therefore creates a borrowing requirement. Rather
than take out external borrowing, the Council is utilising its cash balances and internally
borrowing to finance the capital expenditure.
Changes to the Prudential Indicators for the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR),
External Debt and the Operational Boundary.
The following table shows the CFR, which is the underlying external need to incur borrowing
for a capital purpose. It also shows the expected debt position over the period. This is
termed the Operational Boundary.
2020-21
Original
Estimate
For Year End
£’000
Prudential Indicator – CFR
CFR – housing
CFR – non housing
Commercial activities/
non-financial investments
Total CFR
Net movement in CFR

2020-21
Latest
Approved
For Year End
£’000

2020-21
Forecast
Outturn
For Year End
£’000

68,441
4,677

68,441
5,528

68,427
1,441

68,427
1,688

8,410
81,528

8,410
82,379

5,124
74,992

7,327
77,442

3,170

4,021

-

2,450

67,456

67,456

Prudential Indicator – External Debt / Operational Boundary
Borrowing
67,456
67,456
Other long term liabilities

Position
As At
30-09-20
£’000

0

0

0

0

Total debt 31 March

67,456

67,456

67,456

67,456

Approved Operational
Boundary

87,000

87,000

87,000

87,000

The original estimate for the CFR for 2020/21 in the table above was set prior to the yearend accounts for 2019/20 being completed. The position as at 30 September 2020 and the
revised estimate therefore takes account of these adjustments.

Page 58

APPENDIX A
Limits to Borrowing Activity
The first key control over the treasury activity is a prudential indicator to ensure that over the
medium term, net borrowing (borrowings less investments) will only be for a capital purpose.
Gross external borrowing should not, except in the short term, exceed the total of CFR in the
preceding year plus the estimates of any additional CFR for 2020/21 and next two financial
years. This allows some flexibility for limited early borrowing for future years. The Council
has approved a policy for borrowing in advance of need which will be adhered to if this
proves prudent.

Gross borrowing
Less investments
Net borrowing
CFR (year-end position)

2020-21
Original
Estimate
For Year
End
£’000
67,456
(19,679)
47,777
81,528

2020-21
Revised
Estimate
For Year
End
£’000
67,456
(20,037)
47,419
82,379

Position
As At
30/09/20
£’000

67,456
(50,171)
17,285
74,992

2020-21
Forecast
Outturn
For Year
End
£’000
67,456
(24,280)
43,176
77,442

The Executive Director Commercialisation (Section 151 Officer) reports that no difficulties
are envisaged for the current or future years in complying with this prudential indicator.
A further prudential indicator controls the overall level of borrowing. This is the Authorised
Limit which represents the limit beyond which borrowing is prohibited, and needs to be set
and revised by Members. It reflects the level of borrowing which, while not desired, could be
afforded in the short term, but is not sustainable in the longer term. It is the expected
maximum borrowing need with some headroom for unexpected movements. This is the
statutory limit determined under section 3 (1) of the Local Government Act 2003.
Authorised limit for external debt

2020-21
Original
Estimate
For Year End
£’000
85,000

Position
As
At
30/09/20
£’000
85,000

2020-21
Revised
Estimate
For Year End
£’000
85,000

Other long term liabilities

1,000

1,000

1,000

Commercial activities/non-financial
investments
Total

5,000

5,000

5,000

91,000

91,000

91,000

Borrowing

The limit of £1m for long term liabilities shown above provides headroom for the Council to
take out finance leases for capital assets rather than outright purchase. Prior to taking out a
finance lease, a full option appraisal would be carried out to ensure it is the most cost
effective way of financing the capital expenditure.

Page 59

APPENDIX A
Borrowing
The Council’s projected capital financing requirement (CFR) for the end of 2020/21 is
£77.442m. The CFR denotes the Council’s underlying need to borrow for capital purposes.
If the CFR is positive the Council may borrow from the Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) or
the market (external borrowing) or from internal balances on a temporary basis (internal
borrowing). The balance of external and internal borrowing is generally driven by market
conditions. The Council has borrowings of £67.456m in respect of the Housing Revenue
Account self-financing settlement and it is anticipated that further borrowing will not be
undertaken during this financial year but this will be kept under review.
The following graph shows the movement in PWLB rates for the first six months of the year
to 30th September 2020.

The 50-year PWLB target rate for new long-term borrowing was unchanged at 2.30%.
Debt Rescheduling
Debt rescheduling opportunities have been very limited in the current economic climate and
following the various increases in the margins added to gilt yields which have impacted
PWLB new borrowing rates since October 2010. No debt rescheduling has therefore been
undertaken to date in the current financial year.
Compliance with Treasury and Prudential Limits
It is a statutory duty for the Council to determine and keep under review the affordable
borrowing limits. During the half year ended 30th September 2020, the Council has operated
within the treasury and prudential indicators set out in the Council’s Treasury Management
Strategy Statement for 2020. The Executive Director Commercialisation (Section 151
Officer) reports that no difficulties are envisaged for the current or future years in complying
with these indicators.

Page 60

APPENDIX A

Annual Investment Strategy
The Treasury Management Strategy Statement (TMSS) for 2020/21, which includes the
Annual Investment Strategy, was approved by the Council on 26th February 2020. In
accordance with the CIPFA Treasury Management Code of Practice, it sets out the Council’s
investment priorities as being:




Security of capital
Liquidity
Yield

The Council will aim to achieve the optimum return (yield) on its investments commensurate
with proper levels of security and liquidity and with the Council’s risk appetite. In the current
economic climate it is considered appropriate to keep investments short term to cover cash
flow needs, but also to seek out value available in periods up to 12 months with high credit
rated financial institutions, using the Link suggested creditworthiness approach, including a
minimum sovereign credit rating and Credit Default Swap overlay information.
As shown by the interest rate forecasts in Appendix B, it is now impossible to earn the level
of interest rates commonly seen in previous decades as all investment rates are barely
above zero now that Bank Rate is at 0.10%, while some entities, including more recently the
Debt Management Account Deposit Facility (DMADF), are offering negative rates of return in
some shorter time periods. Given this risk environment and the fact that increases in Bank
Rate are unlikely to occur before the end of the current forecast horizon of 31st March 2023,
investment returns are expected to remain low.
Negative investment rates
While the Bank of England has said that it is unlikely to introduce a negative Bank Rate, at
least in the next 6 -12 months, some deposit accounts are already offering negative rates for
shorter periods. As part of the response to the pandemic and lockdown, the Bank and the
Government have provided financial markets and businesses with plentiful access to credit,
either directly or through commercial banks. In addition, the Government has provided large
sums of grants to local authorities to help deal with the Covid crisis; this has caused some
local authorities to have sudden large increases in investment balances searching for an
investment home, some of which was only very short term until those sums were able to be
passed on.
As for money market funds (MMFs), yields have continued to drift lower. Some managers
have suggested that they might resort to trimming fee levels to ensure that net yields for
investors remain in positive territory where possible and practical. Investor cash flow
uncertainty, and the need to maintain liquidity in these unprecedented times, has meant
there is a glut of money swilling around at the very short end of the market. This has seen a
number of market operators, now including the DMADF, offer nil or negative rates for very
short term maturities. This is not universal, and MMFs are still offering a marginally positive
return, as are a number of financial institutions.

Page 61

APPENDIX A

Inter-local authority lending and borrowing rates have also declined due to the surge in the
levels of cash seeking a short-term home at a time when many local authorities are probably
having difficulties over accurately forecasting when disbursements of funds received will
occur or when further large receipts will be received from the Government.
Investment Portfolio 2020/21
The Council held £50.171m of investments and £3.227m of loans to Welland Homes as at
30 September 2020. The investment portfolio yield for the first six months of the year is
0.756% against a benchmark of 0.106% (average 3 month LIBID). Deposits held excluding
accrued interest are shown on the following page.
In addition to the investments listed, the Council has issued four loans to Welland Homes
totalling £3.227m at a rate of 3.5% which are classified as Long Term Debtors.
The Executive Director Commercialisation (Section 151 Officer) confirms that the approved
limits within the Annual Investment Strategy were not breached during the first six months of
2020/21.
The Council’s budgeted investment return for 2020/21 is £544,200 (GF £383,000, HRA
£161,200) and performance for the year to date is £202,340 which is £70,000 below the
profiled budget. The outturn is currently projected to be £325,000 which is £219,200 below
the estimate. This budget shortfall can be attributed to the current level of exceptionally low
interest rates available.
The Council monitors risk of its investment portfolio against the Link Asset Services
counterparty risk matrix. This matrix gives recommended maximum investment durations for
each financial institution based on the ratings allocated by the major credit rating agencies
and also takes into account credit default swap prices.

Page 62

APPENDIX A

Institution

Page 63

Welland Homes (Fair Value)
South Holland Community Housing Company (Fair Value)
Lloyds Bank Current Account (A+)
Handelsbanken (AA)
CCLA Money Market Fund
Lloyds Bank (A+)
Lloyds Bank (A+)
National Westminster Bank (A+)
Standard Chartered (A+)
Lloyds Bank (A+)
Helaba Bank (A+)
Goldman Sachs International Bank (A)
Australia & New Zealand Bank (A+)
Nationwide Building Society (A)
Thurrock Borough Council (N/A)
Close Brothers (A-)
Standard Chartered (A+)
Doncaster Metropolitan Borough Council (N/A)
Standard Chartered (A+)
National Westminster Bank (A+)
Nationwide Building Society (A)
TOTAL

Investment
Type

Start
Date

Maturity
Date

Equity
Equity
Instant Access
Instant Access
Instant Access
95 Day Notice
Time Deposit
Certificate of Deposit
Time Deposit
Time Deposit
Time Deposit
Time Deposit
Time Deposit
Time Deposit
Time Deposit
Time Deposit
Time Deposit
Time Deposit
Time Deposit
Certificate of Deposit
Time Deposit

n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
12/04/19
19/06/19
10/10/19
21/11/19
02/12/19
13/12/19
07/01/20
30/01/20
13/03/20
08/04/20
20/04/20
13/05/20
12/06/20
17/06/20
29/09/20

n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
09/04/20
17/06/20
09/04/20
20/11/20
02/12/20
12/06/20
05/01/21
30/07/20
12/03/21
08/10/20
20/10/20
12/05/21
17/03/21
17/03/21
07/01/21

Rate/
Return
%
n/a
n/a
0.00
0.10
0.12
0.20
1.25
1.00
0.82
1.10
0.89
0.96
0.97
0.74
1.05
1.25
1.11
1.00
0.41
0.39
0.05

As at
31-03-20
£’000
2,601
1,063
514
4,999
6,190
0
2,500
5,000
3,000
2,500
2,500
3,000
2,500
3,000
2,000
0
0
0
0
0
0
41,367

As at
30-09-20
£’000
2,601
1,063
1,023
4,992
10,000
2,492
0
0
0
2,500
2,500
0
2,500
0
2,000
2,500
3,000
3,000
2,000
5,000
3,000
50,171

APPENDIX A

OTHER
Changes in risk policy
The 2018 CIPFA Codes and guidance notes have placed enhanced importance on risk
management. Where an authority changes its risk policy e.g. for moving surplus cash into or
out of certain types of investment funds or other types of investment instruments, this
change in risk policy should be brought to members’ attention in treasury management
update reports.
There has been no change in risk policy to report.

Page 64

APPENDIX B
Economics and Interest Rates

Please note this Appendix has been provided by Link Asset Services based on information
available as at 07/10/20. Global and market events will have moved on when the
committee meeting is held.
ECONOMICS UPDATE
As expected, the Bank of England’s Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) kept Bank Rate unchanged
on 6th August. It also kept unchanged the level of quantitative easing (QE) at £745bn. Its forecasts
were optimistic in terms of three areas:


The fall in Gross Domestic Product (GDP) in the first half of 2020 was revised from 28%
to 23% (subsequently revised to -21.8%). This is still one of the largest falls in output of any
developed nation. However, it is only to be expected as the UK economy is heavily skewed
towards consumer-facing services – an area which was particularly vulnerable to being
damaged by lockdown.



The peak in the unemployment rate was revised down from 9% in Q2 to 7½% by Q4
2020.



It forecast that there would be excess demand in the economy by Q3 2022 causing
Consumer Price Index (CPI) inflation to rise above the 2% target in Q3 2022, (based on
market interest rate expectations for a further loosening in policy). Nevertheless, even if the
Bank were to leave policy unchanged, inflation was still projected to be above 2% in 2023.

It also squashed any idea of using negative interest rates, at least in the next six months or so. It
suggested that while negative rates can work in some circumstances, it would be “less effective as
a tool to stimulate the economy” at this time when banks are worried about future loan losses. It
also has “other instruments available”, including quantitative easing (QE) and the use of forward
guidance.
The MPC expected the £300bn of QE purchases announced between its March and June
meetings to continue until the “turn of the year”. This implies that the pace of purchases will slow
further to about £4bn a week, down from £14bn a week at the height of the crisis and £7bn more
recently.
In conclusion, this would indicate that the Bank could now just sit on its hands as the economy was
recovering better than expected. However, the MPC acknowledged that the “medium-term
projections were a less informative guide than usual” and the minutes had multiple references to
downside risks, which were judged to persist both in the short and medium term. One has only to
look at the way in which second waves of the virus are now impacting many countries including
Britain, to see the dangers. However, rather than a national lockdown, as in March, any spikes in
virus infections are now likely to be dealt with by localised measures and this should limit the
amount of economic damage caused. In addition, Brexit uncertainties ahead of the year-end
deadline are likely to be a drag on recovery. The wind down of the initial generous furlough
scheme through to the end of October is another development that could cause the Bank to review
the need for more support for the economy later in the year. Admittedly, the Chancellor announced
in late September a second six month package from 1st November of government support for jobs
whereby it will pay up to 22% of the costs of retaining an employee working a minimum of one third
of their normal hours. There was further help for the self-employed, freelancers and the hospitality
industry. However, this is a much less generous scheme than the furlough package and will
inevitably mean there will be further job losses from the 11% of the workforce still on furlough in
mid-September.
Overall, the pace of recovery is not expected to be in the form of a rapid V shape, but a more
elongated and prolonged one after a sharp recovery in June through to August which left the
economy 11.7% smaller than in February. The last three months of 2020 are now likely to show no
growth as consumers will probably remain cautious in spending and uncertainty over the outcome

Page 65

APPENDIX B
of the UK/EU trade negotiations concluding at the end of the year will also be a headwind. If the
Bank felt it did need to provide further support to recovery, then it is likely that the tool of choice
would be more QE.
There will be some painful longer term adjustments as e.g. office space and travel by planes,
trains and buses may not recover to their previous level of use for several years, or possibly ever.
There is also likely to be a reversal of globalisation as this crisis has shown up how vulnerable
long-distance supply chains are. On the other hand, digital services is one area that has already
seen huge growth.
One key addition to the Bank’s forward guidance was a new phrase in the policy statement,
namely that “it does not intend to tighten monetary policy until there is clear evidence that
significant progress is being made in eliminating spare capacity and achieving the 2% target
sustainably”. That seems designed to say, in effect, that even if inflation rises to 2% in a couple of
years’ time, do not expect any action from the MPC to raise Bank Rate – until they can clearly see
that level of inflation is going to be persistently above target if it takes no action to raise Bank Rate
The Financial Policy Committee (FPC) report on 6th August revised down their expected credit
losses for the banking sector to “somewhat less than £80bn”. It stated that in its assessment
“banks have buffers of capital more than sufficient to absorb the losses that are likely to arise
under the MPC’s central projection”. The FPC stated that for real stress in the sector, the economic
output would need to be twice as bad as the MPC’s projection, with unemployment rising to above
15%.
US. The incoming sets of data during the first week of August were almost universally stronger
than expected. With the number of new daily coronavirus infections beginning to abate, recovery
from its contraction this year of 10.2% should continue over the coming months and employment
growth should also pick up again. However, growth will be dampened by continuing outbreaks of
the virus in some states leading to fresh localised restrictions. At its end of August meeting, the
Fed. tweaked its inflation target from 2% to maintaining an average of 2% over an unspecified
time period i.e.following periods when inflation has been running persistently below 2%,
appropriate monetary policy will likely aim to achieve inflation moderately above 2% for some time.
This change is aimed to provide more stimulus for economic growth and higher levels of
employment and to avoid the danger of getting caught in a deflationary “trap” like Japan. It is to be
noted that inflation has actually been under-shooting the 2% target significantly for most of the last
decade so financial markets took note that higher levels of inflation are likely to be in the pipeline;
long term bond yields duly rose after the meeting. The Fed. also called on Congress to end its
political disagreement over providing more support for the unemployed as there is a limit to what
monetary policy can do compared to more directed central government fiscal policy. The Federal
Open Market Committee’s updated economic and rate projections in mid-September showed that
officials expect to leave the fed. funds rate at near-zero until at least end-2023 and probably for
another year or two beyond that. There is now some expectation that where the Fed. has led in
changing its inflation target, other major central banks will follow. The increase in tension over the
last year between the US and China is likely to lead to a lack of momentum in progressing the
initial positive moves to agree a phase one trade deal.
EU. The economy was recovering well towards the end of Q2 after a sharp drop in GDP, (e.g.
France 18.9%, Italy 17.6%). However, the second wave of the virus affecting some countries
could cause a significant slowdown in the pace of recovery, especially in countries more
dependent on tourism. The fiscal support package, eventually agreed by the EU after prolonged
disagreement between various countries, is unlikely to provide significant support and quickly
enough to make an appreciable difference in weaker countries. The European Central Bank (ECB)
has been struggling to get inflation up to its 2% target and it is therefore expected that it will have
to provide more monetary policy support through more quantitative easing purchases of bonds in
the absence of sufficient fiscal support.
China. After a concerted effort to get on top of the virus outbreak in Q1, economic recovery was
strong in Q2 and has enabled it to recover all of the contraction in Q1. However, this was achieved
by major central government funding of yet more infrastructure spending. After years of growth

Page 66

APPENDIX B
having been focused on this same area, any further spending in this area is likely to lead to
increasingly weaker economic returns. This could, therefore, lead to a further misallocation of
resources which will weigh on growth in future years.
Japan. There are some concerns that a second wave of the virus is gaining momentum and could
dampen economic recovery from its contraction of 8.5% in GDP. It has been struggling to get out
of a deflation trap for many years and to stimulate consistent significant GDP growth and to get
inflation up to its target of 2%, despite huge monetary and fiscal stimulus. It is also making little
progress on fundamental reform of the economy. The resignation of Prime Minister Abe is not
expected to result in any significant change in economic policy.
World growth. Latin America and India are currently hotspots for virus infections. World growth
will be in recession this year. Inflation is unlikely to be a problem for some years due to the creation
of excess production capacity and depressed demand caused by the coronavirus crisis.
INTEREST RATE FORECASTS
The Council’s treasury advisor, Link Asset Services, has provided the following forecast as at
07/10/20.
The PWLB rates quoted are the concessionary certainty rates.

Bank Rate
3 Month
Average
Earnings
6 Month
Average
Earnings
12 Month
Average
Earnings
5yr
PWLB*
rate
10yr
PWLB*
rate
25yr
PWLB*
rate
50yr
PWLB*
rate

Dec20

Mar21

Jun21

Sep21

Dec21

Mar22

Jun22

Sep22

Dec 22

Mar23

0.10%

0.10%

0.10%

0.10%

0.10%

0.10%

0.10%

0.10%

0.10%

0.10%

0.05%

0.05%

0.05%

0.05%

0.05%

-

-

-

-

-

0.10%

0.10%

0.10%

010%

0.10%

-

-

-

-

-

0.15%

0.15%

0.15%

0.15%

0.15%

-

-

-

-

-

1.90%

2.00%

2.00%

2.00%

2.00%

2.00%

2.10%

2.10%

2.10%

2.10%

2.10%

2.10%

2.10%

2.10%

2.20%

2.20%

2.20%

2.30%

2.30%

2.30%

2.50%

2.50%

2.50%

2.60%

2.60%

2.60%

2.70%

2.70%

2.70%

2.70%

2.30%

2.30%

2.30%

2.40%

2.40%

2.40%

2.50%

2.50%

2.50%

2.50%

* PWLB – Public Works Loan Board
The coronavirus outbreak has done huge economic damage to the UK and economies around the
world. After the Bank of England took emergency action in March to cut Bank Rate to first 0.25%, and
then to 0.10%, it left Bank Rate unchanged at its meeting on 6th August (and the subsequent

Page 67

APPENDIX B
September meeting), although some forecasters had suggested that a cut into negative territory could
happen. However, the Governor of the Bank of England has made it clear that he currently thinks that
such a move would do more damage than good and that more quantitative easing is the favoured tool if
further action becomes necessary. As shown in the forecast table above, no increase in Bank Rate is
expected within the forecast horizon ending on 31st March 2023 as economic recovery is expected to
be only gradual and, therefore, prolonged.
GILT YIELDS / PWLB RATES. There was much speculation during the second half of 2019 that bond
markets were in a bubble which was driving bond prices up and yields down to historically very low
levels. The context for that was heightened expectations that the US could have been heading for a
recession in 2020. In addition, there were growing expectations of a downturn in world economic growth,
especially due to fears around the impact of the trade war between the US and China, together with
inflation generally at low levels in most countries and expected to remain subdued. Combined, these
conditions were conducive to very low bond yields. While inflation targeting by the major central banks
has been successful over the last 30 years in lowering inflation expectations, the real equilibrium rate for
central rates has fallen considerably due to the high level of borrowing by consumers. This means that
central banks do not need to raise rates as much now to have a major impact on consumer spending,
inflation, etc. The consequence of this has been the gradual lowering of the overall level of interest rates
and bond yields in financial markets over the last 30 years. Over the year prior to the coronavirus crisis,
this has seen many bond yields up to 10 years turn negative in the Eurozone. In addition, there has, at
times, been an inversion of bond yields in the US whereby 10 year yields have fallen below shorter term
yields. In the past, this has been a precursor of a recession. The other side of this coin is that bond
prices are elevated as investors would be expected to be moving out of riskier assets i.e. shares, in
anticipation of a downturn in corporate earnings and so selling out of equities.
Gilt yields had therefore already been on a generally falling trend up until the coronavirus crisis hit
western economies during March. After gilt yields spiked up during the initial phases of the health crisis
in March, we have seen these yields fall sharply to unprecedented lows as major western central banks
took rapid action to deal with excessive stress in financial markets, and started massive quantitative
easing purchases of government bonds: this also acted to put downward pressure on government bond
yields at a time when there has been a huge and quick expansion of government expenditure financed
by issuing government bonds. Such unprecedented levels of issuance in “normal” times would have
caused bond yields to rise sharply. At the close of the day on 30th September, all gilt yields from 1 to 6
years were in negative territory, while even 25-year yields were at only 0.76% and 50 year at 0.60%.
From the local authority borrowing perspective, HM Treasury imposed two changes of margins over
gilt yields for PWLB rates in 2019-20 without any prior warning. The first took place on 9th October
2019, adding an additional 1% margin over gilts to all PWLB period rates. That increase was then at
least partially reversed for some forms of borrowing on 11th March 2020, but not for mainstream General
Fund capital schemes, at the same time as the Government announced in the Budget a programme of
increased infrastructure expenditure. It also announced that there would be a consultation with local
authorities on possibly further amending these margins; this was to end on 4th June, but that date was
subsequently put back to 31st July. It is clear HM Treasury will no longer allow local authorities to borrow
money from the PWLB to purchase commercial property if the aim is solely to generate an income
stream (assets for yield).
Following the changes on 11th March 2020 in margins over gilt yields, the current situation is as follows: 





PWLB Standard Rate is gilt plus 200 basis points (G+200bps)
PWLB Certainty Rate is gilt plus 180 basis points (G+180bps)
PWLB HRA Standard Rate is gilt plus 100 basis points (G+100bps)
PWLB HRA Certainty Rate is gilt plus 80bps (G+80bps)
Local Infrastructure Rate is gilt plus 60bps (G+60bps)

Page 68

APPENDIX B
It is possible that the non-HRA Certainty Rate will be subject to revision downwards after the conclusion
of the PWLB consultation; however, the timing of such a change is currently an unknown, although it
would be likely to be within the current financial year.
As the interest forecast table for PWLB certainty rates, (gilts plus 180bps), above shows, there is likely
to be little upward movement in PWLB rates over the next two years as it will take economies, including
the UK, a prolonged period to recover all the momentum they have lost in the sharp recession caused
during the coronavirus shut down period. Inflation is also likely to be very low during this period and
could even turn negative in some major western economies during 2020/21.
The balance of risks to the UK



The overall balance of risks to economic growth in the UK is probably relatively even, but is
subject to major uncertainty due to the virus.
There is relatively little UK domestic risk of increases or decreases in Bank Rate and significant
changes in shorter term PWLB rates. The Bank of England has effectively ruled out the use of
negative interest rates in the near term and increases in Bank Rate are likely to be some years
away given the underlying economic expectations. However, it is always possible that safe
haven flows, due to unexpected domestic developments and those in other major economies,
could impact gilt yields, (and so PWLB rates), in the UK.

Downside risks to current forecasts for UK gilt yields and PWLB rates currently include:











UK - second nationwide wave of virus infections requiring a national lockdown
UK / EU trade negotiations – if it were to cause significant economic disruption and a fresh
major downturn in the rate of growth.
UK - Bank of England takes action too quickly, or too far, over the next three years to raise
Bank Rate and causes UK economic growth, and increases in inflation, to be weaker than we
currently anticipate.
A resurgence of the Eurozone sovereign debt crisis. The ECB has taken monetary policy
action to support the bonds of EU states, with the positive impact most likely for “weaker”
countries. In addition, the EU recently agreed a €750bn fiscal support package. These actions
will help shield weaker economic regions for the next year or so. However, in the case of Italy,
the cost of the virus crisis has added to its already huge debt mountain and its slow economic
growth will leave it vulnerable to markets returning to taking the view that its level of debt is
unsupportable. There remains a sharp divide between northern EU countries favouring low debt
to GDP and annual balanced budgets and southern countries who want to see jointly issued
Eurobonds to finance economic recovery. This divide could undermine the unity of the EU in
time to come.
Weak capitalisation of some European banks, which could be undermined further depending
on extent of credit losses resultant of the pandemic.
German minority government & general election in 2021. In the German general election of
September 2017, Angela Merkel’s CDU party was left in a vulnerable minority position
dependent on the fractious support of the SPD party, as a result of the rise in popularity of the
anti-immigration AfD party. The CDU has done badly in subsequent state elections but the SPD
has done particularly badly. Angela Merkel has stepped down from being the CDU party leader
but she intends to remain as Chancellor until the general election in 2021. This then leaves a
major question mark over who will be the major guiding hand and driver of EU unity when she
steps down.
Other minority EU governments. Austria, Sweden, Spain, Portugal, Netherlands, Ireland and
Belgium also have vulnerable minority governments dependent on coalitions which could prove
fragile.
Austria, the Czech Republic, Poland and Hungary now form a strongly anti-immigration bloc
within the EU. There has also been a rise in anti-immigration sentiment in Germany and France.

Page 69

APPENDIX B



Geopolitical risks, for example in China, Iran or North Korea, but also in Europe and other
Middle Eastern countries, which could lead to increasing safe haven flows.
US – the Presidential election in 2020: this could have repercussions for the US economy and
SINO-US trade relations.

Upside risks to current forecasts for UK gilt yields and PWLB rates
 UK - stronger than currently expected recovery in UK economy.
 Post-Brexit – if an agreement was reached that removed the majority of threats of economic
disruption between the EU and the UK.
 The Bank of England is too slow in its pace and strength of increases in Bank Rate and,
therefore, allows inflationary pressures to build up too strongly within the UK economy, which
then necessitates a later rapid series of increases in Bank Rate faster than we currently expect.

Page 70

Agenda Item 13.
SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL
Report of:

Rob Walker – Acting Returning Officer

To:

South Holland District Council Wednesday, 20 January 2021

(Author:

Rhonda Booth, Deputy Acting Returning Officer)

Subject

Changes to Polling Places for Polling Districts CRD2 and SMK2

Purpose:

To agree the changes to the polling places for Polling Districts CRD2 and
SMK2.

Recommendation(s):
1) That Council agree to designate the Snowden Pavillion in Crowland as the Polling Place for
Polling District CRD2.
2) That Council agree to designate Monkshouse Scout Hut, Spalding as the Polling Place for
Polling District SMK2.
3) To delegate authority to the (Acting) Returning Officer, Rob Walker in consultation with the
relevant Ward Members to approve any amendments to polling places prior to the next
compulsory review.

1.0

BACKGROUND

1.1

Section 16 of the Electoral Administration Act 2006 introduced a requirement for local
authorities to undertake a review of their Parliamentary polling districts and polling places
every 4 years. Subsequent amendments to this legislation by the Electoral Registration
and Administration Act 2013 now means that all local authorities must undertake a review
at least every 5 years. The last review was undertaken and agreed by Council on 22
January 2020. Amendments can be made to Polling Places outside of these compulsory
reviews when required.

1.2

A ‘Polling Place’ is the area in which polling stations will be selected by the (Acting)
Returning Officer and is the responsibility of the Council to designate.

1.3

A ‘Polling Station’ is the area within the Polling Place where voting takes place, and are the
responsibility of the Returning Officer to designate.

1.4

It has become necessary to bring this report to council as notice was given that the Royal
British Legion Hall in Crowland was closing and an alternative Polling Place would need to
be identified. An alternative suitable venue was unable to be located in the Polling District.
The Snowden Pavilion has been identified as a suitable replacement in an adjoining Polling
District within the Crowland District Ward. The relevant Ward members have been advised
of the recommended change.

Page 71

1.5

To avoid disruption to children’s education the Returning Officer avoids using schools as
polling stations where possible. An alternative premises has been identified and therefore
we are proposing to move the current venue from Monkshouse Primary School to
Monkshouse Scout Hall, Spalding. The relevant Ward members have been advised of the
recommended change.

1.6

In carrying out this review, the Council has sought to ensure that :




all the electors in the area have reasonable facilities for voting as are practicable in
the circumstances.
the changes to both polling places are as far as reasonable and practicable
accessible to electors who have a disability
The polling place is within the area of the polling district, unless circumstances
make it necessary to designate somewhere else.

2.0

OPTIONS

2.1

To approve the two changes to the Polling Places.

2.2

To approve alternative arrangements to the Polling Places.

3.0

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

3.1

To comply with the legislative requirements and to ensure suitable facilities are in place for
voters.

4.0

EXPECTED BENEFITS

4.1

To ensure that Compliance with legislative requirements.

5.0

IMPLICATIONS
In preparing this report, the report author has considered the likely implications of the
decision - particularly in terms of Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues;
Constitutional & Legal; Contracts; Corporate Priorities; Crime & Disorder; Data Protection;
Equality & Diversity/Human Rights; Financial; Health & Wellbeing; Reputation; Risk
Management; Safeguarding; Staffing; Stakeholders/Consultation/Timescales;
Transformation Programme; Other. Where the report author considers that there may be
implications under one or more of these headings, these are identified below.

5.1

Equality and Diversity / Human Rights

5.1.1

As part of the review the Returning Officer has sought to ensure that all the electors in the
area have reasonable facilities for voting as are practicable in the circumstances. Also, to
ensure that so far as is reasonable and practicable, both polling places are accessible to
electors who have a disability and when considering the designation of a polling place,
must have regard to the accessibility needs of those with a disability.

5.2

Financial

Page 72

5.2.1

No additional financial resources as the two polling places are replacements

5.3

Stakeholders / Constitution / Timescales

5.3.1

Changes to Polling Stations will be highlighted on elector’s poll cards and on the council
website.

6.0

WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED

6.1

Crowland and Deeping St Nicholas (Crowland West Ward) and Spalding Monkshouse.

7.0

ACRONYMS

7.1

None.

Background papers:Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post:
Telephone Number
Email:

n/a

Rhonda Booth – Democratic Services Manager
rbooth@sholland.gov.uk

Key Decision:

N

Exempt Decision:

N

This report refers to a Mandatory Service

Page 73

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 15.
SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL
Report of:

Deputy Leader of the Cabinet and/or Executive Director - Commercialisation
(S151 Officer)

To:

South Holland District Council – Wednesday, 20 January 2021

(Author:

Mark Stinson Executive Manager - Governance)

Subject

Public Sector Partnership Services Limited (“PSPS”)

Purpose:

To consider a proposal to admit a third shareholder and to agree associated
changes to the Joint Venture Shareholder Agreement (“JVSA”)

Recommendation(s):
To the extent that these are non-executive functions, the Council approves the following and, to
the extent that the same are executive functions, the Council recommends to the Leader
1) That, subject to approval of East Lindsey District Council (“ELDC”) and the Board of PSPS,
and subject also to (2), (3), and (4) below, the Council approves admitting Boston Borough
Council (“BBC”) as a Shareholder in PSPS with an allocation of 240 shares.
2) That legal due diligence is conducted to establish whether there are any extraordinary risks
to the Council and delegated authority be granted to the Executive Director –
Commercialisation (s151 Officer), in consultation with the Deputy Leader of the Cabinet, to
determine whether the level of risk is acceptable
3) That the JVSA together with any associated contractual documents be amended or created
as necessary, including the making of provision for a potential future fourth Shareholder, and
that delegated authority be granted to the Executive Director – Commercialisation (s151
Officer), in consultation with the Deputy Leader of the Cabinet, to approve and sign such
revised or new documentation
4) That the Leader completes any necessary company shareholder decisions required under
the Companies Acts.

1.0

BACKGROUND

1.1

PSPS is a local authority trading company that is wholly owned by South Holland and East
Lindsey District Councils. The company was established in 2010 and the arrangement has
very recently been extended by a further ten years (but with provision to review after five
years). The company delivers financial, human resources & payroll, customer contact,
revenues and benefits and ICT & Digital services.

1.2

It was always anticipated that a third shareholder might join the company, and provision
was made for this in the JVSA by way of ‘C’ shares (ELDC holding ‘A’ shares and SHDC
holding ‘B’ shares). BBC has indicated a desire (subject to formal decision) to become a
shareholder in PSPS and has also indicated that, if all parties agree, it would like to aim for
a joining date of 1 April 2021. Given the recent transformation plan investment made by

Page 75

both ELDC and SHDC, for investments such as the new finance system, the new HR
system, and so on, BBC would be required to make an initial financial investment related to
the current transformation plan and also other expenses (such as legal costs). SHDC and
ELDC will continue to benefit fully from the existing transformation plan and associated
savings that have been identified.
1.3

BBC will also be required to sign up to the terms already agreed between SHDC and ELDC
in respect of the JVSA. This includes the existing review/potential exit point in five years’
time. Bringing in a third shareholder will deliver efficiency savings for the Council, details of
which are set out in the Appendix to this report and in the Financial Implications section at
paragraph 5.4.1.

1.4

At present, the shareholdings are SHDC (37%) and ELDC (63%). Each Council has three
directors on the Board and the company’s governance arrangements mean that ELDC and
SHDC have equal power when it comes to decision-making. If BBC is admitted as a
shareholder it will receive 240 shares, and shareholdings will become ELDC (48%), SHDC
(28%) and BBC (24%). BBC will be able to appoint two directors to the Board. However,
certain key shareholder decisions will be reserved to SHDC and ELDC as the ‘founder
shareholders’ (an example being ‘deadlock’ decisions).

1.5

Various legal formalities will be required if BBC does become a shareholder – such as
changes to the JVSA, changes to the company Articles, and various formal
decisions/resolutions by the Board and shareholders.

1.6

Informal consultation took place, on 7 January 2021, with members of the Policy
Development and Performance Monitoring Panels. Feedback was positive, and the
following issues were identified:







Local Government Review – SHDC, ELDC and BBC will be sharing back
office services but this may not match the geographical area of any future
structural arrangements. It was noted, however, that PSPS already supports
local authorities outside of the current SHDC/ELDC area (Breckland
Council).
Resilience – members felt that a third partner would improve resilience and
there would be the potential for further efficiencies.
The challenges in proceeding with such a project, and at such pace, were
acknowledged given the current circumstances.
It was important to maintain service levels during on-boarding of BBC.
It was noted that there has, for a long time, been an ambition for PSPS to be
open to further business and seek new opportunities.

2.0

OPTIONS

2.1

Approve the proposal – which will result greater efficiency savings and closer working with
partner authorities.

2.2

Approve the proposal but on different terms – not recommended as discussions have been
going on for some time to reach the current position.

2.3

Do nothing – in which case the existing arrangements will remain in place and the
additional efficiency savings will be foregone.

Page 76

3.0

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

3.1

To extend local external partnership arrangements and to generate efficiency savings
whilst maintaining service levels.

4.0

EXPECTED BENEFITS

4.1

Increased business, resilience and efficiency for our company, PSPS, together with a
resulting reduction in cost of service to the Council, and closer working with another
Lincolnshire authority which may assist in any future proposals for local government review
in Lincolnshire. Further benefits are also identified on the appendix to this report.

5.0

IMPLICATIONS
In preparing this report, the report author has considered the likely implications of the
decision - particularly in terms of Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues;
Constitutional & Legal; Contracts; Corporate Priorities; Crime & Disorder; Data Protection;
Equality & Diversity/Human Rights; Financial; Health & Wellbeing; Reputation; Risk
Management; Safeguarding; Staffing; Stakeholders/Consultation/Timescales;
Transformation Programme; Other. Where the report author considers that there may be
implications under one or more of these headings, these are identified below.

5.1

Constitutional & Legal

5.1.1

The Council has already established the company, which it did with specialist legal advice.
Subsequent changes to the company arrangements have been made with specialist legal
advice. Any changes to the arrangements in admitting BBC will also be subject to specialist
legal advice from the same external provider.

5.1.2

A number of decisions will also be made by the company (through its Board and
shareholders) in accordance with the Companies Acts.

5.2

Contracts

5.2.1

If approved, the changes will result in an amended JVSA.

5.3

Corporate Priorities

5.3.1

PSPS provide a number of key back office functions which support all of the Council’s
corporate priorities.

5.4

Financial

5.4.1 The current and revised contract prices are detailed in the table below. This demonstrates
an increased saving of £181k, before any additional investment, could be achieved if the
proposal is accepted. Additional information is also provided in the appendix to this report.

Page 77

SHDC Original MTFS

2021/22

2022/23

2023/24

2024/25

2025/26

3,142,934

3,142,934

3,099,094

3,038,147

2,849,017

Annual Costs

38,501

39,568

40,072

40,585

Savings

82,341

100,515

229,202

41,634

3,099,094

3,038,147

2,849,017

2,847,968

2021/22

2022/23

2023/24

2024/25

2025/26

3,198,434

3,086,469

3,042,630

2,912,516

2,723,386

38,501

39,568

40,072

40,585

Opening Contract Price

Closing Contract Price

3,142,934

Opening Contract Price as @ 1st April 2021

3,142,934

Cumulative Costs (Yrs 1 to 5)

158,726

Cumulative Savings (Yrs 1 to 5)

453,692

Closing Contract Price as @ 31st March 2026

2,847,968

Contract Price Reduction by 31st March
2026

294,966

SHDC Revised MTFS with Boston Impact
Opening Contract Price
Annual Costs
Savings

111,965

82,341

169,681

229,202

41,634

Closing Contract Price

3,086,469

3,042,630

2,912,516

2,723,386

2,722,338

Opening Contract Price as @ 1st April 2021

3,198,434

Cumulative Costs (Yrs 1 to 5)

158,726

Cumulative Savings (Yrs 1 to 5)

634,822

Closing Contract Price as @ 31st March 2026

2,722,338

Contract Price Reduction by 31st March
2026

476,096

Cumulative Savings Growth by Yr 5

181,130

Additional Contract Reduction by Yr 5

181,130

-

Page 78

5.5

Risk Management

5.5.1

The risk to existing shareholders is considered to be relatively low, but it is proposed to
seek an assessment of legal risk from external legal advisors who will also prepare the
necessary contractual documents. This will include, for example:





Looking at the issue of decision-making with a third shareholder and additional
Board directors and whether this introduces risk/difficulty for existing Shareholder
Councils in terms of Board and Shareholder decisions.
Contractual issues in respect of existing services and systems.
Other legal risks that external advisers may identify under the proposed
arrangements.

5.5.2 Non-legal risks will also be considered and managed if the proposal progresses – such as
any potential impact on service delivery during the transition, potential pressure on ICT
infrastructure and management of a tight timetable.
5.6

Stakeholders / Constitution / Timescales

5.6.1

Consultation has taken place informally between the Leaders of SHDC, ELDC and BBC.
Feedback from consultation with members of Policy Development Panel and Performance
Monitoring Panel is set out in paragraph 1.6.

6.0

WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED

6.1

All wards are affected

7.0

ACRONYMS
BBC – Boston Borough Council
ELDC – East Lindsey District Council
JVSA – Joint Venture Shareholder Agreement
PSPS – Public Sector Partnership Services Limited
SHDC – South Holland District Council

Background papers:Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post:
Telephone Number
Email:

None

Mark Stinson Executive Manager - Governance
mark.stinson@breckland-sholland.gov.uk

Key Decision:

N

Exempt Decision:

N

This report refers to Mandatory and Discretionary Services

Page 79

Appendices attached to this report:
Appendix A
Summary business case (Exempt)

Page 80

Agenda Item 18.

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 81

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 95

Agenda Item 19.

This page is intentionally left blank

